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ABOUT SEM
PR IRE

OUR PROFILE

Ready System Engineering Limited (“Ready System (Macau)”) was
founded in 2006. Upon group reorganisation in 2015, Ready System
(Macau) become a wholly owned subsidiary of SEM Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”).

We are a renowned and established electrical and mechanical (‘E&M”)
engineering works contractor in Macau with our focus on providing
electrical-related E&M engineering works.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 (“Year 2022” or the “Year”),
the Group has continued its strategy of diversifying its market risks
and uncertainties by continuing to engage projects with scope of our
E&M engineering works in Hong Kong segment through its wholly
owned subsidiary, SEM Resources Limited (“SEM Resources”).

The scope of our E&M engineering works mainly consisted of supply,
installation and maintenance of electrical system, for new and existing
buildings in the projects of commercial and residential development,
hotel development, casino development, hotel renovation and sports
venue in Macau and Hong Kong.
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ABOUT SEM

REI Y TR
OUR DEVELOPMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT BRERRET

2006 Ready System (Macau) was incorporated in Macau on 15 May 2006. *‘m* "
TETRE RERSK (RPN EERERA+AHTRPIEMALIL =
Ready System (Macau) was awarded its first casino project with a total contract sum of r
approximately MOP22.2 million. ii-l
SERG (RF) BRE—(ERMLIBEE BN HAR22 288 RM T
2007 Ready System (Macau) provided electrical engineering works in a mixed use development
“EZLHF  (hotel and service apartments) project with a total contract sum of approximately MOP118.6
million.
ERG (RP) m—ESREERARNER (BERRBALE) BEREKETIR 85
HWERENA118.6E B BT
Ready System (Macau) was awarded its first residential apartment project with a total contract A
sum of approximately MOP34.8 million. o
PERG (R ERE—EFEASEE  B5NSBNR34.88RRMIT :
2008 The annual revenue of our Group achieved approximately MOP70.0 million.
“EENEFE FEEBRFEWGAORT0.0BE R T
2015 Ready System (Macau) duly registered with The Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau of
£ —H%F Macau as a registered contractor for execution of construction works.
RERG ORPY) R LM TR ERR EA SR A ETREIRNIMARERs-
Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to install and supply electrical system in a
residential and commercial development project at Taipa, Macau with the initial contract sum
of approximately MOP138.7 million.
2ERG (R BE—EEB WRMKFNEEREEREREECERERER R4
TEENEENA138.7TEEREMT
2016 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to provide maintenance, supply and installation
ZZ—RHF  of fitting out, electrical, mechanical ventilation and air conditioning and plumbing works in
a hotel renovation project at Avenida da Amizade, Macau with the initial contract sum of l_._ _,_I
approximately MOP120.6 million. R HHFR
DERG (RPY) BER—EEE  HREMKAASE—EOEHHERREEE - BR %
WBRKRERUREEBIENRE HEKZE  TIRENEENR/1206B8 Rt
2017 The annual revenue of our Group first achieved over MOP200.0 million.
“Z2—tF FEEERERFENRZE200.08EHEM T
2019 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system in a hotel
“E—H%F development project at Lago Nam Van, Macau with the initial contract sum of approximately

MOP168.8 million (included provisional sum of approximately MOP13.6 million).
PERF RPN BE—EER #/ORMEEH—EESEREEREERARNMHER
ZHE VRS AEERN72168.8B BRI T (BIFHENE£EEMN13.6 BEEPIT) °
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ABOUT SEM
BRI BIE

OUR DEVELOPMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT BRET
(Continued)

2020 The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
“ZETFF  Exchange”) on 14 February 2020. |
AABNZZE_Z2FE_B+HBRERHERBABRARE (THAr) Lo I @

2021 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system in a
—ZE”—4 hospital development project at Cotai with the initial contract sum of approximately MOP123.0
million.
DERG (R BRE—EEE ARKF—EERERBEERHERAGNHER KL
A E SN A123.08 8 BT

SEM Resources was awarded projects to supply and install electrical system in a data centre
development project at Kwai Chung and in sport park development project at Kai Tak with the
initial contract sums of approximately HK$42.0 million (equivalent to approximately MOP43.4
million) and of approximately HK$358.6 million (equivalent to approximately MOP369.9 million),
respectively.

SEM Resources BB » AR RA—EAHBET OEREBE M RENBE A ARBEES
REBR[AGHNEERRE  VRENEED NN R42.088 BT FTEN484588RM
70) $358.6B BTt (5 #9369.98 HEFITT)

2022 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system
“E "% in a casino resort development project in Cotai, Macau with the initial contract sum of
approximately MOP27.8 million.
SERG (R EE—EEE > RAIURFIKF—ERESZERBERIRHERARNHERER
LIRS HNE RN R27.8ERRM T

SEM Resources was awarded projects to provide installation of mechanical ventilation and air
conditioning for chained catering restaurants, with the contract sum of approximately MOP3.8

million.
SEM Resources E1BIEE » A E M AEIRMHMMEBARTHTE NS ELA3SEER
P75 o

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES A BESEF ST

Strengthening
our financial
position to undertake
more sizeable E&M

Establishing an

E&M maintenance Strengthening

our manpower

department e engineering projects
R B REERFT = YR B IR IR IR
BAKENKET
2EE



ABOUT SEM
BRRLIRIE

OUR BUSINESS MODEL EHER

Receive the invitation to submit quotation/tender from our
customers

Submit quotation/tender, negotiate with our customers on the
prices and terms, interview with customers and/or dealing
with customers’ enquiries

Accept the offer from our customer if a written letter of intent
is issued by our customer or quotation with our customer is
signed

BEERRIRE/RRNEE

RRME /R R R RERRIERE
THER GRFEXKR/ RNEEEFNH
&

HEREHEEERORARELEER
B RESEREY

‘4

Form a project team which normally comprise a project
manager, site supervisor and engineer

Prepare and submit, among others, working drawing and
detailed work programme

Engage imported workers and subcontractor

Procure electrical parts and components and renting
machines and equipment

Satisfy performance bond requirements

pRI—EEEER —RE—REEE
BT T E R TI2EMAERR

AR (AP e TREBMERFA
TF5tEl

ZEBAFIRDEH
REERT AL BHERKE

B R IRERIZ R

|4

Carry out installation and other ancillary works as scheduled
in the detailed work programme

Submit application to our customers for progress payment
and certification monthly

Carry out site acceptance test on the electrical system
installed to ensure conformity to contractual specifications

Negotiate with our customers for re-measurement and
variation orders from the contract

RRFMA I EAINRBRETEER
Hh#Egh T2

RAREFRXEENRKRERF
HTRERNERAMETRZRICAE
LRI EGHRE

MENMFEREBANTERERET
FEm

‘4

Make good any defects at our own cost within the defect
liability period

Collect the residue of the retention money and the
performance bond upon the end of defect liability period

RERFE S EHR B EEEEARE

RABEETHRWBRE ZHRBEKRED
fREK
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRS

8 SEM Holdings Limited ;&

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the Year 2022,

The Group has marked a major milestone the year of 2020 with its
listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 14 February
2020 (the “Listing”), undoubtedly providing an effective platform for
the Group’s further development in the market. The additional capital
raised and a broader capital base as a result of the Listing reinforce
our determination to the future growth in the E&M engineering
works in Macau and Hong Kong and promote our Group as a well-
organised enterprise to the public.

The Group has recorded a net loss for the Year 2022 and a sharp
increase in revenue for the Year 2022. This is mainly due to a
combination of the factors including (i) increase in revenue as a result
of the ease of quarantine measures for COVID-19 epidemic imposed
by the Macau Special Administrative Region (“SAR”) Government
which lead to improvement in construction progress for certain
Group’s on-going projects for the Year 2022; (i) revenue from sizable
projects in Hong Kong segment as a result of successful market
strategy implemented by management to diversify the uncertainty
and risk imposed by COVID-19 epidemic; (ii)) increased labour costs
in Macau market due to limited import labour quotas in the period of
CQOVID-19 epidemic; and (iv) lower profit margins of certain awarded
projects during the Year 2022 as a result of higher labour costs and
material costs in Hong Kong market and fierce competition in the
construction market.

The COVID-19 outbreak that spread around the world since January
2020 continued to have a materially adverse effect on our operating
results in the Year 2022, though certain results showed improvement
in comparison with the year ended 31 December 2021 (“Year 2021").

The economy of Macau in terms of gross domestic product
decreased in the third and fourth quarters of 2022, dropped by
33.4% and 23.4%, respectively, period-on-period in real terms,
and was only 35.3% and 41.4% of the pre-pandemic level of
2019 for the same period. At the present time, given the evolving
conditions of COVID-19 pandemic, including the recent relaxation
of safety management measures in Macau and Hong Kong, we
expect the economy to be on the path to recovery in the future.
Although the global economic recovery is on track, we are faced with
unprecedented levels of inflation.

SRR

ENRAREREERES (EF) € (EFE)
ERTBIFEZFR

FEER_F_ZFEMBR—EEEZERR
MR- _F B+ A ERLED
(TEm)) " HERSAEERTHSNE - #
RIEH—EEMTa - LHAEENERINEESK
FEANERAERSHRMEMBENRFRE
BRREREEIR TEHRBARBRAE
ESAEBISTTERRE

REEEHB T - _FEPEER UKREEZ
S EEREZBEMe L EEHNZIE
REZEHEEMY 8F1)ERFIFHITHRE
(MFRIITE&)) BURBECOVID-19% 1B iR a5
FeBEFTR%  ERAEBET ERETHRERN
TECCFENRITEEAFEMWALEN ;

(VR EIEEB SO HCOVID-19% B R
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R P FFE33.4%%23.4% » BRI EATEZZ
ZE-AFNBIBRIKFERNG5.3%/M41.4%° B
B> BEFRCOVID- 19 B R ENEE R > 158
FIREBNPNELZE SIS HMFETRK
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FIERRIFF R BB E R IRKF -



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESEE

Despite of the unprecedented impact to the global economic
market caused by the inflation and COVID-19 pandemic, which
created increasing challenges on business operation of the Group
in Macau and Hong Kong, going forward, we are optimistic about
the prospects of electrical-related E&M engineering industry as the
COVID-19 pandemic situation improves and economy recovers. We
have developed our E&M maintenance department to further enlarge
the Group’s revenue base and hence achieve its long-term growth
in the coming future after the economic recovery. We have also
actively sought opportunities to undertake additional E&M engineering
services related projects, for example, to continue developing the
Hong Kong E&M engineering services market, which would stabilise
the Group’s revenue base in the period of economic recovery and
in the long-run. For the market in Macau, we have continued to
exercise our leading knowledge and skills in providing electrical-
related E&M engineering services to our clients. The Group is
actively pursuing new projects in the market segment that the Group
specialize in and has been exploring in 2022. With the advantage of
the perfect-harmony cooperation with our customers, suppliers and
subcontractors, the Group is optimistic about the revenue growth and
prospects of electrical-related E&M engineering industry in the coming
years.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all business partners, professional parties and our
shareholders for their unwavering trust and support of the Group. |
would also like to thank the management team and all employees for
their commitment, professionalism and achievements. In conclusion,
the Group will remain persistent and determined to ensure long-term
development and greater returns for our shareholders.

Wan Man Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023

EEBEHIEKRCOVID-19% 15 % 2 Ik 48 7 1 153
ERBIFIABNER SAEEERMEREEDN
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FIT 35 B MIAEEE AR FIBIB I M I B8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERROH

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET PROSPECT

Ready System (Macau) was founded in 2006. We are a renowned
and well-established E&M engineering works contractor in Macau
with our focus on providing electrical-related E&M engineering
works. The scope of our E&M engineering works mainly consisted
of supply, installation and maintenance of electrical system, for new
and existing buildings in the projects of commercial and residential
property development, public property development, hotel and casino
development and renovation in Macau. During the Year 2022, the
Group has diversified its market risks and uncertainties by continuing
to engage projects with scope of our E&M engineering works in Hong
Kong segment through its wholly owned subsidiary, SEM Resources
Limited (“SEM Resources”).

During the Year 2022, 8 E&M engineering services projects with an
aggregate contract sum of approximately MOP42.0 million were
awarded. The Group had completed 15 E&M engineering services
projects in the Year 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
backlog included 14 E&M engineering services projects, with an
aggregate outstanding contract sum of approximately MOP347.6
million.

During the Year 2022, the Group recorded total revenue of
approximately MOP290.2 million, which increased by approximately
MOP108.0 million or 59.3% from approximately MOP182.2 million
for the Year 2021. The increase was mainly attributable to (i) the ease
of quarantine measures for COVID-19 epidemic imposed by the
Macau SAR Government which led to improvement in construction
progress for certain Group’s on-going projects for the Year 2021; and
(i) continuous revenue from projects in Hong Kong segment as a
result of successful market strategy implemented by management to
diversify the uncertainty and risk imposed by COVID-19 epidemic.

EFCACI LY &R LT

2EZRG CRF) IR ZEERNEMIT - K2R
PMEEREBNMNLEB IR IERKER 1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET PROSPECT
(Continued)

The economy of Macau in terms of gross domestic product
decreased in the second and third quarters of 2022, dropped by
39.3% and 33.4%, respectively, period-on-period in real terms, and
was only 35.3% and 31.7% of the pre-pandemic level of 2019 for the
same period. The economic deterioration is mainly due to the new
cases of COVID-19 in June and “relatively static” control measures
implemented in July, led to a drop in visitor arrivals. COVID-19 control
measures still affect the economy of Macau.

In the fourth quarter of 2022, the gross domestic product increased
by 26.9% compared to the third quarter of 2022, indicated a recovery
of Macau economy.

The Group has been keen to seek opportunities in undertaking new
projects of E&M engineering services in its principal market in Macau
and expand its scale of operation through its intended effort in the
Hong Kong market from both existing and potential new customers
to diversify the market risks. Benefit from undertaking project in
Hong Kong, the Group generated project revenue of MOP175.0
million in the geographical segment in Hong Kong in the Year 2022
when compared with MOP78.3 million in the Year 2021. The Group
was therefore able to explore more business opportunities in face
of the economic downturn as a result of COVID-19 epidemic. We
understand that Macau SAR Government laid out its vision to
develop a smart city, ranging from hospitality facilities, transportation
management to telecommunications and 5G network. Considering
the latest situation of Macau’s economy from the impact of COVID-19
epidemic, the Directors expect an improved business environment
in the coming years. The Group recognized the need to strengthen
its workforce in order to take on larger projects in the future. As a
result, in the Year 2022, the Group expanded its project management
team. This development allowed the Group to not only meet the
current demands of its clients but also to be better equipped to
handle bigger and more complex projects in the future. With a larger
team, the Group will be able to provide better project management
and supervision, ensuring that projects are delivered on time, within
budget, and to the satisfaction of its clients. This is in line with the
Group’s future plan as disclosed in section headed “Future plans”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 January 2020 (the
“Prospectus”).

Hence, the management is cautiously optimistic about the E&M
markets in Macau and Hong Kong after the recovery from the
epidemic and will continue to strive for capturing the new market and
new trend of rising needs for E&M engineering services.

EZCIERTIS = @
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR AN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 59.3% from approximately
MOP182.2 million for the Year 2021 to approximately MOP290.2
million for the Year 2022. Such increase was mainly due to a
combination of factors as disclosed in section headed “BUSINESS
REVIEW AND MARKET PROSPECT”.

B4 %ol g8

I &

AERNKEE - E-—FENNI822HE R
PITTIE 59 3% E S - “FEMN290.28E
SEPT e BRI ML T BN MK LB RIS
S —BFRESERE GHEERR -

2022 2021
=== —E—F

MOP million % MOP million %

BERMT BEEMT
Hotels and Casinos T R iR 2353 28.2 9.7% 20.6 16.2%
Residential properties FEY= 1.6 0.5% 10.5 5.8%
Commercial properties BEYE 11.6 4.0% 66.3 36.4%
Public properties N E 247.4 85.3% 74.9 41.1%
Others Hih 14 0.5% 0.9 0.5%

290.2 182.2

Cost of sales SHERZS

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately MOP266.3
million for the Year 2022, representing an increase of 65.7% from
approximately MOP160.7 million for the Year 2021. Cost of sales
mainly comprised of costs of materials and subcontracting costs,
which accounted for approximately 22.8% and 51.2% respectively of
the Group’s total cost of sales for the Year 2022 (2021: 36.5% and
49.8% respectively). The increase in cost of sales for the Year 2022
mainly due to increase in revenue for the Year 2022 and inflation of
labour cost.

TR CEE - AEENHEERASA4266.35
BEREMT BRI —FENN160.78 EEM
TCIBMNG5.7% o SHE M AT BEEIEM B R A KD
BEAE DAIMEEER B2 _FEAHERLX
B94922.8%5%51.2% (ZEFE——F : 9 73]%36.5%
F49.8%) c _E - " FEZHEMRAIE ML E
EHN _E__FEZWREMURSESF K
I 0



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continuec)

Gross Profit/Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s overall gross profit for the provision of E&M engineering
works increased to approximately MOP23.9 million for the Year
2022 from approximately MOP21.5 million for the Year 2021. The
gross profit margin decreased from 11.8% for the Year 2021 to
approximately 8.2% for the Year 2022.

The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to (i)
generally lower profit margins of certain awarded projects during
the Year 2022 as a result of higher labour costs and material costs
in Hong Kong market and fierce competition in the construction
market; (i) increased labour costs in Macau market due to limited
import labour quotas in the period of COVID-19 epidemic; and
(i) the projects for the Year 2021 with relatively higher gross profit
margin due to the variation works as a result of the alteration of the
construction plan and our successful negotiation with our customers
for a relatively higher profit margin in view of the short completion time
required. Those projects were at their latter stage and approaching
practical completion, of which the gross profit contribution is relatively
larger for the Year 2021.

Despite the decrease in gross profit margin of the Group in the Year
2022, the Directors consider that the gross profit margin has been
maintained at a healthy position as such gross profit margin in the
Year 2022 is in the lower end project margins in historical records
and also given the economic downturn due to COVID-19 epidemic.
The Group is striving for bidding potential projects with higher gross
profit margin and costs saving to maintain higher gross margin of the
Group.

Other income

Other income mainly included interest income from banks,
government grants, disposal of scrap materials and sundry
income. For the Year 2022, the Group’s other income amounted to
approximately MOP1.7 million (Year 2021: approximately MOPO0.8
million). Such increase was mainly attributable to the one-off
government grant for securing the employments of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR AN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continueq)
Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal

The prolonged COVID-19 epidemic adversely affected business
operations of a group of project employer (the “Project Employer
Group”) of the Group’s sizable E&M engineering project of a hotel
development (the “Project”) in 2020, of which the outstanding
contract assets and trade receivables with gross balances amounted
to MOP28.6 million and MOP13.3 million, respectively were
outstanding as at 31 December 2022. The Project Employer Group
suspended the development of the Project since the third quarter of
2020. The ultimate holding company of the Project Employer Group
is a listed company in the Stock Exchange, who announced the
disposal of interest in the Project Employer Group to a third party (the
“Purchaser”) for generating more cash to finance its operation under
the COVID-19 pandemic environment.

Despite the Group’s direct customers of the Project (the “Direct
Customers”) are not the Project Employer Group itself as mentioned
above, this increases the credit risks of the trade receivables and
contract assets of the Project. At 31 December 2022, the Group
has recognised cumulative credit loss allowance on contract
assets and trade receivables of approximately MOP18.4 million
and MOP7.3 million (831 December 2021: approximately MOP9.8
million and MOP3.0 million), respectively, of which credit loss
allowance of approximately MOP6.9 million and MOP3.6 million
(81 December 2021: approximately MOP5.5 million and MOP2.0
million) are related to contract assets and trade receivables of the
Project, respectively.

Management of the Group has actively communicated with the
Direct Customers and understand that the Direct Customers have
commenced legal actions via arbitration against the main-contractor
of the Project. During the Year 2022, the arbitration related to the
Project was in progress and it is expected the whole arbitration
process will finish by the end of 2023. In addition, we believe that
we can recover the amount due from the Direct Customers because
() no matter what happens, our rights to demand outstanding
payments from the Direct Customers are not affected by any other
arrangements of other parties involved in the Project; (i) good and
long-term on-going business relationships between the Group
and the Direct Customers for more than ten years with no default
in history. Furthermore, there were continuing settlements and
certification of completed works for billing after the suspension of the
Project during the Year 2022; and (jii) the Group obtained a repayment
commitment from the Direct Customer to fully repay the outstanding
contract assets and trade receivables by the completion of arbitration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continuec)

Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal
(Continued)

Impairment losses under ECL model derived from trade receivables
and contract assets of the Group. The change in impairment loss
under ECL model from impairment loss of MOP7.7 million in the Year
2021 to impairment loss of approximately MOP12.9 million in the
Year 2022 was mainly due to overall increase in credit risks on certain
project customers and taken into accounts for the following factors
including (i) continuing settlements of completed works for billing
to the Project in the Year 2022; (i) increase credit risk as a result of
economic recession of casino market in Macau; and (jii) increase in
gross balances of the Group’s contract assets and trade receivables
of other projects at 31 December 2022. Furthermore, there were
continuing settlements and certification of completed works for billing
after the suspension during the Year 2022.

Management of the Group have taken actions to recover the
outstanding balances of the Project and consider that those balances
will be recovered eventually. ECL has been provided on these
balances in accordance with the requirements set out in Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard (‘HKFRS”) 9

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased from approximately
MOP19.3 million for the Year 2021 to approximately MOP18.2 million
for the Year 2022. Such decrease was mainly due to reclassification
of staff costs for engineering staffs to cost of sales.

Taxation

The change in the Group’s income tax expense from tax expense
of approximately MOP14,000 for the Year 2021 to tax expenses of
MOP1.2 million for the Year 2022, which was in line with the increase
in the Group’s taxable profit for the Year 2022.

Net Loss and Adjusted Net Loss

The Group reported net loss for the Year 2022 of approximately
MOP6.9 million, as compared with net loss of approximately MOP5.0
million suffered for the Year 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR AN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continuec)
Final Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year 2022 (Year 2021: nil).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group has financed its operations primarily through cash inflows
from operating activities, as well as proceeds received from the
Listing. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately MOP20.4 million (31 December 2021:
approximately MOP40.3 million) and remains steady in its financial
position in meeting its future financial obligations.

As at 31 December 2022, the working capital (current assets less
current liabilities) and total equity attributable to owners of the
Group were approximately MOP193.6 million (31 December 2021:
approximately MOP198.5 million) and approximately MOP224.0
million (31 December 2021: approximately MOP230.9 million),
respectively.

Gearing ratio (total debt including amounts due to Directors/total
equity) as at 31 December 2022 was approximately 23.6% (31
December 2021: approximately 18.4%). Such increase was mainly
due to increase in trade and other payables.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities, and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements all the time.

CURRENCY RISK

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions and assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the relevant group entities.
As such, the Group currently does not have any foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions and assets
and liabilities as the Group’s risk in foreign exchange is insignificant.
However, the Group will continue to monitor closely its exposure to
currency movement and take proactive measures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of
rate changes on interest bearing financial assets, mainly interest-
bearing bank balances. The interest rates of these bank deposits are
determined by reference to the respective bank offer rate. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTY

The Group’s business operations are conducted in Macau and Hong
Kong providing the electrical-related E&M engineering works and
our engagements with customers were on a project basis and non-
recurring in nature that we did not enter into any long-term agreement
or master service agreement with them. We have to undergo the
competitive bidding process for every new project. In the event that
we are unable to attract new customers or secure new projects
from our existing customers, there may be a significant decrease in
our revenue. Our operations and financial results would hence be
adversely affected.

The Group’s liquidity position may be adversely affected if the
progress payment or the retention money is not paid or released to
the Group on time or in full or the construction project cash flows are
fluctuated. To monitor the pressure of financial liquidity, the Group
produces aging analysis on regular basis and contracts management
level of the customers so as to get a better understanding of their
solvency status.

Other principal risks include fluctuations in estimated project
costs versus the actual project cost incurred due to unexpected
circumstances and imported labour quota allocated to our projects,
both of which would adversely affect the Group’s operations and
financial performance.

The Group is also exposed to certain market risks such as currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, etc.

The Group believes that risk management is the responsibility of
everyone within the Group and has implemented a risk management
system to mitigate the risks in daily operations. Risk management
is led by the Directors at the top, who take both macro and micro
economic conditions into account before making business decisions,
and also aims to develop risk awareness and control responsibility as
the Group’s culture and the foundation of the Group’s internal controls
system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR AN

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
significant investments, nor material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associated companies for the Year 2022.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

During the Year 2021, a property in Macau was pledged to a bank
located in Macau for obtaining a mortgage loan of HK$8.0 million to
finance the relevant acquisition.

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2022 are pledged to secure the performance bonds granted to the
Group. The Group had no other material pledge of assets as at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2022.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above and in the Prospectus, the Group does not
have other plans for material investments and capital assets as at 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no material capital commitments as at 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

The Group’s principal business objective is to further strengthen its
position as an integrated construction contractor.

For development of E&M engineering services, the Group continues
to achieve its business objective by expanding its scale of operation
through its intended effort in actively seeking opportunities in
undertaking additional E&M engineering services related projects in
Macau and Hong Kong markets, from both existing and potential new
customers, on top of its present scale of operation and its current
projects on hand.

From the long-term perspective, the Group expects that the resilience
of construction demand will be return in 2023, as most of the
CQVID-19 epidemic risk factors have been sufficiently exposed.

In order to further diversify the risks and uncertainty in the Group’s
operation, the Group has expanded its scale of operation through its
intended effort in actively seeking opportunities in potential investment
in promising business in the greater China area in the coming future,
which would continue to stabilise the revenue base of the Group in
the long-run.

For development of E&M maintenance department, the Group has
acquired a property in Macau on 22 January 2021 for the use as
a workshop. The workshop has been used for the parking and
regular maintenance of our machines and vehicles, and also serves
as an centre for our staff and technicians to handle orders for E&M
maintenance services. In the Year 2022, the Group expanded its
project management team. This development allowed the Group to
not only meet the current demands of its clients but also to be better
equipped to handle bigger and more complex projects in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR AN

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES (continueq)

Regarding the control strategies to amid the COVID-19, the Group
centralised the project teams to stay either in Macau or Hong Kong
for avoiding unnecessary time spent on the COVID-19 testing and
cross border quarantine measures. Such practice has been relaxed
along with the ease of quarantine measures for COVID-19 epidemic.
Besides, the Group is maintaining various safety measures to reduce
the risk of widespread of COVID-19 virus including staff training
and distributing hygienic tool kits, face masks and encouraging
vaccination, etc.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in elsewhere of this report, there have been no
other material events occurring after the Year 2022 and up to the date
of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the Year 2022, as far as the Board and management are
aware there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has material impact
on the business and operation of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had 79 full-time employees including non-executive
directors and executive directors as at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: 63), among which 56 and 23 (31 December 2021:
29 and 34) were stationed in Macau and Hong Kong, respectively.
The total staff costs (including fees, salaries and other allowance,
and retirement benefit scheme contributions) for the Year 2022
were approximately MOP26.0 million (Year 2021: approximately
MOP17.6 million). The remuneration policy and package of the
Group’s employees were periodically reviewed by management of
the Company. Apart from retirement benefit scheme contributions,
salaries increment and discretionary bonuses may be awarded
to employees according to the assessment of individual and the
Group’s performance. The remuneration policy in place as at 31
December 2022 was in line with the current legislation in the relevant
jurisdictions, market conditions and performance of the staff and the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) have been listed on the
Stock Exchange since 14 February 2020 (the “Listing Date”). Net
proceeds from the Listing were approximately MOP73.2 million (after
deducting the underwriting commission and other listing expenses
in connection to the Listing). As at 31 December 2022, the net

EHFrIMIERAR
AAFRY (BB 8

—E—=

—< ==

F-A+mWA

(TETREA)) R LT o LTS RIE

FBER/NTICHEERM T (BNGREHEAE R
BEETARMMAEMEDREX®E) - R Z2 2
+TZR=+—H FEMEFEZFAB R

proceeds had been utilised as follows: T
Actual usage Unutilised
Net up to amounts as at
proceeds from 31 December 2022 31 December
the Listing 2021 Actual usage 2022
BE 1
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TIEEE 2ERBR BERAR ZREAEE
MOP million MOP million MOP million MOP million
BERMT BEREMT BEEMT BERMT
Payment of the upfront cost for PRSI N
our future projects NE 22.9 (22.9) = =
Payment of the performance bonds for REREERARED
our future projects (NES 22.9 (22.9) = =
Establishing E&M Maintenance i ERERM
Department 15.3 (14.1) - 1.2
Strengthening manpower BmAF 7.2 7.2) = =
Strengthening manpower for R EREME
(E&M Maintenance Department) AF 4.4 (4.4) = =
General working capital —REEE: 0.5 (0.5) = =
73.2 (72.0) - 12
The unutilised proceeds of approximately MOP1.2 million were placed R ENAFFERIEN1 2HE R TEMRN —BS
with a licensed bank in Hong Kong. BIFhEERTT

As affected by COVID-19 epidemic, the Group targets to complete
the implementation of the future plan and the unutilised net proceeds
are expected to be fully utilised within one year after the Year 2022.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFhEREEEBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board consists of eight Directors, including three executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The biographies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set forth below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Woo Chu Fai (881 #8) , aged 52, is our executive Director, chief
executive officer and senior project manager. He was appointed as
our executive Director on 29 March 2016 and our chief executive
officer on 1 August 2018. He is a director of SEM Resources Limited.
He is currently responsible for overseeing our projects management,
execution of daily management and operation, and regulatory
compliance.

Mr. Woo has more than 25 years of experience in the E&M
engineering industry. He joined Ready System (Macau) on
22 February 1995 as an engineer. Mr. Woo started to work for our
Group in around April 2007 and has served as our senior project
manager since 1 March 2016. He was awarded higher diploma in
management of building services engineering from Vocational Training
Council in Hong Kong in July 2003. He obtained a bachelor degree
of engineering in building services engineering from the University of
Central Lancashire, through distance learning, in December 2007. He
currently holds the certificate of registration of electrical worker issued
by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department in Hong Kong
and is a Grade C electrical worker.

For Mr. Woo’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ Report” in this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wun Chi Wai (FE®&) (“‘Mr. CW Wun”), aged 53, joined Ready
System (Macau) as a contracts manager on 1 May 1993. Mr. CW
Wun joined our Group as a shareholder of Ready Engineering Limited
(“Ready Engineering”) upon the incorporation of Ready System
(Macau), a company incorporated in Macau, on 15 May 2006. He is
one of our controlling Shareholders and our executive Director. He is
also a director of each of the members of our Group except for Ready
System (Macau). He was appointed as our Director on 6 November
2015 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on
29 March 2016. On 1 August 2018, he was re-designated as our
executive Director. He is currently responsible for providing strategic
advice to our Group’s business development.

Mr. CW Wun was awarded the higher certificate in building studies
by Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1991. He obtained a master
degree of business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (currently known as City University of Macau) in
January 1999. He is the younger brother of Mr. Wan Man Keung and
the cousin of Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis. He has more than 25
years of experience in the E&M engineering industry.

For Mr. CW Wun'’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in
this annual report.

Mr. Yu Chi Kwan (§iE E) (‘Mr. Yu"), aged 53, joined Ready System
(Macau) on 1 April 1994 as an engineer. Mr. Yu joined our Group as a
shareholder of Ready Engineering on 28 December 2010 and started
to work for our Group in around April 2013. He was appointed as our
senior project manager on 16 April 2016 and our executive Director
on 1 August 2018 and is one of our controlling Shareholders. Mr. Yu
is currently responsible for overseeing our projects management,
execution of daily management and operation.
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Executive Directors (Continueqd)

Mr. Yu completed a three-year part-time evening technician
programme at Morrison Hill Technical Institute (currently known as
the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in
Hong Kong and was awarded a certificate in electrical engineering
in September 1992. Mr. Yu has more than 25 years of experience
in the E&M engineering industry. He currently holds the certificate
of registration of electrical worker issued by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department in Hong Kong and is a Grade B
electrical worker.

For Mr. YU’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in this
annual report.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wan Man Keung (FE38) (‘Mr. MK Wan”), aged 61, founded
our Group (through Ready Engineering) on 15 May 2006. He
is one of our controlling shareholders, our chairman and non-
executive Director, and member of our nomination committee. He
was appointed as our Director on 6 November 2015 and was re-
designated as our executive Director on 29 March 2016. On 1 August
2018, he was re-designated as non-executive Director. He is also
a director/administrator of each of the members of our Group.
He is currently responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group’s business development.

Mr. MK Wan currently holds the certificate of registration of electrical
worker issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
in Hong Kong and is a Grade B electrical worker. He has more
than 28 years of experience in the E&M engineering industry. Prior
to founding our Group, Mr. MK Wan, together with other business
partners, through Ready Engineering, established, among others,
Ready System (Macau) providing various E&M engineering services
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China. Mr. MK Wan is
currently an executive director of REM Group (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 1750), the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

EETw
BITEE @

MEEEEBNEEE LT XS5 (REEEE
ZHEER (BEEBWLNR) TR=FF2 A

B ERRERER—NAENAEERE
TRBE - AL RS TR T 2 A M5 a4

BB EEAMETIREMENEETR
AEFMEBERE A HBREEXTREAS-

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬁ%’é%&ﬁﬁEW@J”XV&BFE?@E‘EZ

R iED FE2RETFREFTERE—H

FHITESR
FRBEE (FRBELE)) 61 RETN
FHA+AHBEBR2EIRAUAER RRIE

RERRZ—EFERFATES UR/RLEES
ERE KN _E-—AF+—ARNBEZERE

ERRZEB-—RE=ZBZ+ABBERNITE
E-RTE-N\FNB—B KAERIFRITE

B RTAAEEETEHEATNNES TR
ANB - REEEFEREBLERNERRRE
REE-

FRABCERTESBRETIEZEENEE
TRAEZMEHRE B2 —GBREXETEA
Bo BRI E T RITERERA8ELE - 1NElIL
AEEF FEBILEERNEMERBHERS
ETREML HPeR 2ERFK B NREER
REARHENERELSEBHRETIRERE - FER
RERAZEBRER (R BRAE BRMHMR
g% 1750 HEBITRMERZAT L) B#EIT
EHo



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFENEREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)
Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. MK Wan completed form three education in 1978. He was
awarded a craft certificate in electrical fittings and installations by
the Morrison Hill Technical Institute (currently known as the Hong
Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in Hong Kong
in July 1981. He is the elder brother of Mr. CW Wun and a cousin of
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis.

For Mr. MK Wan’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in
this annual report.

Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis (fF§FZ52), aged 66, is our
non-executive Director and member of our audit committee and
remuneration committee. She was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 29 March 2016. She is currently responsible for providing
strategic advice to our Group’s internal control and corporate
governance. Mrs. Kan is currently a certified public accountant
(practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a chartered tax adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Between June 1977 and December 1980, Mrs. Kan worked for The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation (currently known as
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited). She was
employed by John B.P. Byrne & Co. between December 1980 and
April 1985 with her last position as tax senior. She was a founding
partner of a local firm of certified public accountants from April 1997
to October 2010. She later founded KAN-WAN Certified Tax Advisors,
a tax consultancy firm, in December 2010 and BOYA CPA & Co., a
certified public accountant (practising) firm, in October 2012.

Mrs. Kan is currently a non-executive director of REM Group
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 1750), the issued shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. She completed the programme of
diploma in management studies organised jointly by the Hong Kong
Management Association and Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in June 1988.
Mrs. Kan is a cousin of Mr. MK Wan and Mr. CW Wun.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer (Z|JFZE), aged 71, is our
independent non-executive Director and chairman of our nomination
committee and member of our remuneration committee. He was
appointed as the independent non-executive Director on 22 January
2020. He is currently responsible for providing independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources and standard of conduct. He is also a fellow
of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and was the president from
1996 to 1997.

Mr. Lau has substantial experience and involvements in construction,
real estate and infrastructure projects. Mr. Lau was a member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 2000 to 2004. He was
a former chairman of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(HK Branch). He was a non-executive director of the Urban Renewal
Authority, a member of the council of the City University of Hong
Kong, a member of the Council of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, the Chairman of the Hong Kong Coalition of Professional
Services, a member of the HKSAR Economic Development
Commission, a member of the Basic Law Promotion Steering
Committee, a member of the Lantau Development Advisory
Committee, and a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shanghai. Mr. Lau is currently
the managing director of Biel Asset Management Company Limited.
Mr. Lau was also an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (stock code: 1888) from August 2015
to January 2022 and was an independent non-executive director
of MTR Corporation Limited (stock code: 66) from August 2015 to
May 2019, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Also,
since November 2020, Mr. Lau has worked for China Resources
Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1209), as an independent non-
executive director.

Mr. Lau was awarded a higher diploma in quantity surveying from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in 1974 and a master degree in construction
project management from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lau is one of the founders and currently the chairman of Hong
Kong Coalition of Professional Services.
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Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS GE{# ), aged 68, is
our independent non-executive Director and chairman of our
remuneration committee and member of our audit committee. He was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 22 January
2020. He is currently responsible for providing independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources and standard of conduct. Dr. Sham is
currently a practicing barrister in Hong Kong. He has been admitted
as a barrister of High Court of Hong Kong in 1986, a barrister of
High Court of Australia in 1991, and a barrister and solicitor of the
Supreme Court of the Australian Capital Territory (ACT) in 1991.
He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the government of
Hong Kong in 2016. He has been elected as a fellow of Society for
Advanced Legal Studies (SALS), England in October 2002.

Between May 1978 and March 2016, Dr. Sham worked for the
government of Hong Kong, including the Department of Justice, with
his last position as deputy director of public prosecutions. He has
been an honorary advisor of the Staff Training Institute of Correctional
Services Department since 2018.

Dr. Sham was awarded a bachelor degree of social science from The
Hong Kong University in November 1978, a bachelor degree of laws
from The University of Buckingham in February 1984, a postgraduate
diploma in law and practice from The City University London in
October 1985, a master degree of laws in Chinese law from The
University of Hong Kong in December 2004 and a doctorate degree
of laws* (£Z18 =) from China University of Political Science and Law
in June 2005.
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Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas (#§X5&), aged 61, is our independent
non-executive Director and chairman of our audit committee and
member of our nomination committee. He was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 22 January 2020. He is
currently responsible for providing independent judgement to bear on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources and
standard of conduct.

Mr. May has gained experience of accounting, finance and general
management since 1987. From September 1987 to October 1990,
he worked with Deloitte Ross Tohmatsu (currently known as Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu), with his last position held as senior accountant
in the audit department. From October 2002 to October 2003,
he worked for Kinetana International Biotech Pharma Limited, a
company previously listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(former stock code: 8031) and delisted from the Stock Exchange in
September 2006, as the financial controller and company secretary.
From March 2004 to July 2005, he worked for Zhongda International
Holdings Limited, a company previously listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (former stock code: 909) and delisted from
the Stock Exchange in March 2019, as the group financial controller
and company secretary. From August 2005 to October 2006, he
worked for Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited (later known
as Goldin Properties Holdings Limited), a company previously listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (former stock code:
283) and delisted from the Stock Exchange in August 2017, as the
chief financial officer and company secretary and his last position
as deputy general manager. From April 2007 to October 2009, he
worked for Hopewell Holdings Limited, a company previously listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (former stock code: 54)
and delisted from the Stock Exchange in May 2019, as the group
financial controller. From May 2008 to October 2009, he also worked
for Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited (currently known as
Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company
Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 737), as an alternate director. From March 2010 to
March 2013, he worked for China Resources Property Limited as
the chief financial officer and internal audit director. Since July 2013,
he has been appointed as the director of Nichova Consultants
Limited. From April 2015 to January 2018, Mr. May worked for
China Information Technology Development Limited, a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8178), as an
independent non-executive director. In addition, Mr. May worked for
S&T Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 3928) from August 2019 to January
2021, as an independent non-executive director.
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Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. May obtained a degree of bachelor of economics from Macquarie
University in Australia in April 1986 and a degree of master of
commerce in finance from the University of New South Wales in
Australia in June 1995. He has been an associate of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants (currently known as The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants) since June 1990.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lo Kwun Kit (BB {#), aged 34, was our financial controller and
company secretary. He joined SEM Resources on 7 July 2021 and
started to work for our Group as financial controller and company
secretary. He was resigned as our financial controller and company
secretary on 7 December 2022.

Mr. Lo obtained the degree of bachelor of business administration
with a major in accounting and a minor in finance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2013. Mr. Lo has
approximately 8 years of working experiences in accounting, financial
management and auditing. From 2013 to 2021, Mr. Lo served as
an auditor in several professional firms including two of the big four
international accounting firms in Hong Kong. From February 2021
to July 2021, he was a financial controller of a main board listed
company in Hong Kong. Mr. Lo has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since October 2016.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continueq)

Ms. Yim Ka Wing (B 3X58) , aged 35, is our company secretary. She
was appointed as our company secretary on 7 December 2022. She
is currently responsible for managing and overseeing the corporate
governance and company secretarial matters of our Group.

Ms. Yim obtained the degree of bachelor of accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2012. Ms. Yim has
approximately 10 years of working experiences in accounting,
financial management and auditing. Ms. Yim has been a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
September 2015.

Mr. Wan Ying Pang GBFEHE) , aged 26, is our financial controller. He
joined SEM Resources on 1 December 2022 and started to work for
our Group in replacement of Mr. Lo Kwun Kit as financial controller.
He is currently responsible for managing and overseeing the financial
operation of our Group.

Mr. Wan obtained the degree of bachelor of accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2019. Mr. Wan
has approximately 4 years of working experiences in financial
management, auditing and financial due diligence. From 2019 to
2022, Mr. Wan served in two of the big four international accounting
firms in Hong Kong. Mr. Wan has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEERERS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of corporate
governance standard. The Board believes that good corporate
governance standards are essential in providing a framework for
the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”), enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and all relevant code
provisions as set out under the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
code”) contained in Appendix 14 to Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). To the best of
the knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied with the CG
code during the Year 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.
The Directors will periodically review on the Company’s corporate
governance policies and will propose any amendment, if necessary, to
ensure compliance with the code provisions from time to time.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the requirements of the Model Code
throughout the Year 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of eight
Directors including Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Chief executive officer), Mr. Wun
Chi Wai and Mr. Yu Chi Kwan as the executive Directors, and Mr. Wan
Man Keung (Chairman) and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the
non-executive Directors, and Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer, Dr. Sham
Chung Ping Alain, BBS, and Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas as the
independent non-executive Directors.

There is a balance of skills and experience for the Board, which is
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Biographical details are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 30 of this annual
report.

Save that Mr. CW Wan is the younger brother of Mr. MK Wan, and
two of them are cousin of Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis, there are
no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as operation and financial performance of the Group.
The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the chairman in drawing the agenda of each meeting and
each Director may request inclusion of matters in the agenda. Al
Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible
for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.1 of the CG code, the Board should
meet regularly and regular board meetings should be held at least
four times per year. Additional meetings would be arranged if and
when required. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The attendance record of each Director at the Board committee
meetings held during the Year 2022 is set out in the table below:

EETw

EETEN =
SREENER R CEEATNESEESY
BHOTRRIINT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

FRHEER R

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Name of Director Board AGM Committee Committee Committee
et 55T RKREBFAE BNZEY R4Z%ZEE HMZEg
Mr. Woo Chu Fai AEERE 5/5 11 N/A RE N/A REH N/A FEH
Mr. Wun Chi Wai FERLE 5/5 11 N/A REH N/A R EH N/A R EH
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan ASELE 5/5 11 N/A FEH N/A R EH N/A R EH
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRALE 5/5 11 N/ATEH 11 N/A R EH
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis BREREA 5/5 11 2/2 N/A R 1/1
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer BRELE 5/5 11 N/A RBH 11 11
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, B8S L ¥+ BBS 5/5 11 2/2 N/A R iEF 11
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas BRRAE 5/5 11 2/2 11 N/A R B

During the Year 2022, the Board has at all times met the
requirements of rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has three
independent non-executive Directors and all of the three independent
non-executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The three independent non-executive Directors represent more than
one-third of the Board, the proportion of which can satisfy what is
required by rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-
executive directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one third
of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient independence
element in the Board to safeguard the interest of Shareholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

Each of the executive and non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment contract with the Company for a period of three years
from the Listing Date and is subject to termination provisions therein
and provisions on retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors
as set out in the amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company (the “Restated Articles”).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a period of three years from
the Listing Date and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors as set
out in the Restated Articles.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board takes the responsibility collectively to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitor the performance of the senior
executives. The Directors have to make decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company. To oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) (together,
the “Board Committees”).

Independent advices are obtained from external professional advisers
to the Board. These advisers bring a fresh perspective to the Board’s
decision-making process and help to ensure that the Board receives
unbiased and objective advice. The Board shall review such practices
annually to ensure the implementation and effectiveness of such
practices.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities of the Directors (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations, and are invited to serve on the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

The Board has delegated to the management, consisting of executive
Directors along with other senior executives, with the responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction adopted by the Board
from time to time and conducting the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group.

The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of references. Further details
of the Board Committees are set out in the sections headed
“Audit Committee”, “Nomination Committee” and “Remuneration
Committee” below.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 22 January 2020 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board
composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the
appointment of new Directors, taking into account a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry and regional experience, and length of service.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continueq)

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

The Company’s diversity philosophy including the gender diversity
was generally followed in the workforce throughout the Group for
the Year 2022. As of the date of this report, 12.5% of Directors and
21.6% of total workforce were female. The Company will continue to
promote diversity, including but without limitation, gender, age, skills,
background, experience diversity, at workforce levels. The Company’s
aim is to increase the representation of female on the Board and in
our workforce to 25% and 25%, respectively, in the coming year.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 22 January 2020 which sets out the criteria and process in the
nomination and appointment of Directors, aims to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and to ensure the Board's continuity
and appropriate leadership. The Nomination Committee shall
identify candidates who are qualified/suitable to become a member
of the Board and to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of candidates nominated for directorships. The selection of
candidates will be based on a range of selection criteria as set out
in the Nomination Policy, including but not limited to, character and
integrity, qualification, potential contributions the candidate can bring
to the Board in terms of qualifications, skill, experience, independence
and gender diversity, the candidate’s willingness and ability to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board.
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NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

For the appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee will first
identify individual(s) suitably qualified to become Board members
and assesses the independence of the proposed independent non-
executive Director(s). Then, the Nomination Committee will make
recommendation to the Board for consideration, having regard to
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy. The Board will
confirm the appointment of the suitable candidate or recommend the
candidate to stand for election at a general meeting of the Company.
The candidate(s) who is/are appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board will be subject to re-election
by Shareholders at the next annual general meeting after initial
appointment in accordance with the Restated Articles.

For the re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee will
also consider the retiring Directors based on the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy, and assess their independence
before the Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the
Board to consider. After the Board considers each retiring Directors,
the Board will recommend the suitable retiring Directors(s) to stand
for re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Restated Articles. The Shareholders will approve the re-election of
Directors at the annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size,
composition (including skills, knowledge, experience and length
of service) of the Board on a regular basis at least annually and
diversity of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has set up a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
22 January 2020 with an aim to strike a balance between maintaining
sufficient capital to develop and operate the business of the Group
and rewarding the Shareholders. According to the Dividend Policy,
in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board shall take into account the following
factors:

(@) the Company’s operating results, actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(c) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

()  the Group’s liquidity position;

(@ general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal and external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Company; and

(h) any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate and
relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Laws of the
Cayman Islands, any applicable laws, rules and regulations and the
Restated Articles. The declaration and payment of future dividend
under the Dividend Policy are subject to the Board’s determination
that the same would be in the best interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole. The Board will review the Dividend Policy
from time to time and may exercise at its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it
deems fit and necessary.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors have participated in the following trainings during the Year
2022:

EFNHEERERE
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Type of Training’°®

Name of Directors EEN4A 1A EE R
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Woo Chu Fai LELEd b B
Mr. Wun Chi Wai FEREE B
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan S ELE B
Non-executive Directors FFHITESE

Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis BFREFE LA A&B
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRALE A&B
Independent Non-executive Directors BLIEHITEE

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer FIRE LA A&B
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS B FEE L BBS ASB
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas PN e AB
Note: Hat

Types of Training: b= [E=h1I I

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, expert briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant newspaper, journals, magazines and relevant
publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 January 2020
with written terms of reference in compliance with rules 3.21 to 3.23
of the Listing Rules and the CG code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to, among other things, (i) maintain relationship with
the Company’s external auditor by including but not limited to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors, (i) review of financial information of
the Company; and (i) oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee consists of Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas and
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS as the independent non-executive
Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the non-executive
Director. Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas currently serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

During the Year 2022, the Audit Committee has held two meetings
and performed the following works:

(a8) reviewed the Group’s annual audited consolidated financial
statements for the Year 2021 and interim unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2022;

(b) reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements;

(c) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and related
matters; and

(d) considered and made recommendations on the re-appointment
of the external auditors of the Group, and the terms of
engagement.

The Company’s annual results for the Year 2022 have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
22 January 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance
with rules 3.25 to 3.27 of the Listing Rules and the CG code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to, among other
things, (i) make recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure for all directors and senior management’s remuneration
and remuneration policy; (i) review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposal with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; (i) make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of all Directors and senior management; (iv) review and
make recommendations to our Board on other remuneration-related
matters, including benefits-in-kinds and their compensation payable
to our Directors and senior management; (v) consider salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; and (vi) review and/
or approve matter relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Lau Ping Cheung
Kaizer and Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS as the independent non-
executive Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the non-
executive Director. Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management are
determined with reference to the responsibilities, workload, the time
devoted and the performance of the Group. The Remuneration
Committee also ensures that no individual will be involved in
determining his/her own remuneration.

During the Year 2022, the Remuneration Committee has held one
meeting for reviewing the remuneration packages of the Directors and
the performance of them and making recommendations to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continueqd)

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the Year 2022 are as follows:

EEHZET @
HINZET @)

RiFEE BT TRIFSCHE 5% SREE
EFRRINR B _FEEFNEES DB
FEEFEMT

Number of
employee(s)
EE%E
Not exceeding HKD 1,000,000 A #8481,000,0007% 7T 3
HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,000,001 75 22,000,000/ 7T 1

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees is set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 January
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to,
among other things, () review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of our Board on a regular basis; (i) identify individual suitably
qualified to become Board members; (i) assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; (iv) make recommendations
to our Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors; and
(v) make recommendations to our Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on our Board and/or senior management.

The Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer
and Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas as the independent non-executive
Directors and Mr. Wan Man Keung as the non-executive Director.
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer currently serves as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continueq)

During the Year 2022, the Nomination Committee has held one
meeting for reviewing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, considering the qualifications of the retiring
Directors standing for election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, reviewing the structure, size, and
composition of the Board and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Committee considered that the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and the aforesaid policies have
been maintained up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision A.2 of the CG code.

During the Year 2022, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year 2022 in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainty
that may cost significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

The statements of the independent auditor of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
91 to 175 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 were audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited,
who were appointed as the Company’s auditor on 30 November
2021 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Save as disclosed above, there has been
no other change of auditor for the preceding three years.

For the Year 2022, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditors, Moore Stephens CPA Limited, in respect of its services
being the annual audit fee for the Year 2022 was approximately
MOP1.02 million.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to safeguard the
Group’s assets and investments and the Shareholders’ interest and
conducts a review on an ongoing basis. The Board acknowledges
that such risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
conducted review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company in aspects of the Group’s
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions through the effort of the Audit Committee.

The Group currently has no internal audit function and the Board
reviewed that it is more cost effective to engage an external
independent consultant instead of recruiting a team of internal
audit staff to perform such annual review function. During the Year
2022, LIF Consultants Limited (the “Consultant”) was engaged to
review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system. The Consultant worked closely with the Group to identify risk
components and risk owners in different aspects through interviews
with and workshops provided to the Group’s management. Also,
the Consultant assisted the Group to evaluate the adequacy of the
existing mitigation plans. In addition, an independent review was
conducted by the Consultant under the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisation of the Treadway Commission’s 2013 framework
(“COSO” to identify weaknesses and enhance the effectiveness and
efficiency of the internal control system of the Group. Last but not
least, findings and recommendations resulting from the review were
reported to and discussed with the Audit Committee and the Board,
and the Consultant concluded that no significant area of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance control and risk
management of the Group has been identified.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board had reached the conclusion that the Group’s
risk managements and internal control systems were in place and
effective.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s environmental,
social and governance strategy and reporting. The Board is
responsible for the Group’s ESG risk management and internal control
systems to ensure that the ESG strategies and reporting requirements
are met. Detailed information on the environmental, social and
governance practices adopted by the Group is set out in the sections
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” (“ESG
Report”) of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Kwun Kit, resigned as the company secretary and Ms. Yim Ka
Wing, was appointed as the company secretary with effect from 7
December 2022. Mr. Lo and Ms. Yim have confirmed that for the Year
2022, they have taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training. The biographies of Mr. Lo and Ms. Yim set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of insider information
with the aim to ensure the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality
requirement and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders and potential investors is essential for enhancing
investor relations and understanding of the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company has adopted the
shareholders’ communication policy with the objective of ensuring
that the Shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company (including the financial performance, strategic
goals and plans, material development, governance and risk profile).
The Company also recognises the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and potential investors to make the informed investment decisions.
The Company review the effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy annually.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
the website of www.semhld.com; where up-to-date information
on the Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access. Latest information of
the Group including annual and interim reports, report and other
corporate communications which will be sent to Shareholders and/
or published are updated on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website in a timely fashion.

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be held
on Tuesday, 13 June 2023. The notice of the annual general meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolutions, voting procedures
and other relevant information, will be sent to the Shareholders at
least 21 days before the annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Restated Articles, an extraordinary
general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the Restated Articles or the Cayman Islands
Company Law for Shareholders to move new resolution at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards proposing
a person for election as a Director, please refer to the “Procedure for
Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director” of the
Company which is posted on the Company’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the Board
through the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit 1, 4/F, Chai Wan Industrial City Phase II, 70 Wing Tai Road, Chai
Wan, Hong Kong (email: general@semhid.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year 2022. The Restated Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing electrical-related E&M engineering
works mainly consisted of supply, installation and maintenance of
electrical system, for new and existing buildings in the projects of
commercial and residential development, hotel development, casino
development, public properties and hotel renovation in Macau and
Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review on the Group’s business for the Year 2022 is set out under
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Listing was completed on 14 February 2020 and net proceeds
from the placing and public offer was approximately MOP73.2 million
(after deducting all listing related expenses). Please refer to the
Management Discussion and Analysis section in this annual report for
more details of the use of proceeds.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year 2022 are set forth in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 100 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year 2022 (2021
Year: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Tuesday, 13 June 2023.
A notice convening the meeting will be published in the Company’s
website and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner as
required by the Listing Rules in due course.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 8 June 2023 to Tuesday, 13 June 2023, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to establish entitlements of attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 7 June 2023.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years is set out on page 176 of this annual
report. Such summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year 2022 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set
out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES
The Company did not issue any debenture during the Year 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Restated
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, the Company has
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders of approximately
MOP34.6 million and of approximate MOP32.3, respectively.

Movements of the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the Year 2022 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 174 and 103, respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year 2022, the Group’s five largest customers and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 95.6% and 58.2%
(Year 2021: 97.0% and 69.4%) of the total revenue of the Group,
respectively.

The Group’s five largest subcontractors and the largest subcontractor
accounted for approximately 62.6% and 16.7% (Year 2021:
49.0% and 13.4%) of the total subcontracting cost of the Group,
respectively.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers and largest supplier accounted for approximately 74.4%
and 46.2% (Year 2021: 71.8% and 18.3%) of the Group’s total
purchases for the Year 2022, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

Employees

The Group has maintained good relationship with our employees.
The Group offers to our employees salary, bonuses and other
allowances. In general, the Group determines employee salaries
based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority. The
Group has assessed the performance of our employees, which forms
the basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses and
promotions.

Customers

The Group has established stable business relationships with our
major customers. Our long-term business relationships with our
major customers and suppliers would further enhance our market
recognition and enable us to attract more potential business
opportunities.

Suppliers and subcontractors

The Group carefully evaluate the performance of our suppliers and
select them based on a number of factors such as pricing, quality
of material or equipment provided, timeliness of delivery and ability
to comply with our requirements and specifications. The Group will
review and assess their performance on an ongoing basis.

The Group also closely assess the performance of our subcontractors
and select subcontractors based on their experience relevant to the
particular project as well as their availability and fee quotations. The
Group will review their performance on an ongoing basis. Subject to
the Group’s capacity, resource level, cost effectiveness, complexity of
the projects and customers’ requirements. The Group is accountable
to our customers for the works performed in a project, including those
carried out by our subcontractors.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors confirm that the Group’s related party transactions
as set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements
were continuing connected transactions, which were exempt
from all disclosure requirements, annual review and independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report are as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wun Chi Wai
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wan Man Keung (Chairman)
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas

In accordance with the Restated Articles, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new
Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next following general meeting after appointment.

TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANT

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation
to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its holding company
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Year 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
on 14 February 2020 and are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Restated Articles.

The non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors have been appointed for a fixed term of three years
commencing on 14 February 2020 and are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Restated Articles.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company or any
member of the Group, which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 22 to 30 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the requirements of the Model Code for
the Year 2022.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in the note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions. None of the Directors waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for the Year 2022.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive to
eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals are set
out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. Details of the
retirement benefits scheme are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Restated Articles, the Directors and other officers
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duties or supposed duties in their respective offices,
except such (if any) as shall be incurred or sustained through their
own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for
the Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or incurred,
arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year 2022 and up to the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in any business which were in competition or
were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly with the Group’s
business which needs to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year 2022 was the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of the SFO, which had to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
in which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long positions in the ordinary Shares
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Total number Approximate

of Shares and percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held (L) share capital
FR¥FRZ (7 R
HERARZ (5 BEITRAN
EEHSA 517 #m4E (L) SRl
(Note 1)
oz,
Mr. MK Wan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
FR®BEE REEGEEN#ED (1772)
Notes: HizE -

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. SEM Enterprises Limited (“SEM Enterprises”) is owned as to 77.0%,
20.0% and 3.0% by Mr. MK Wan, Mr. CW Wun and Mr. Yu respectively.
Hence, Mr. MK Wan is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
SEM Enterprises under the SFO.
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2. SEM Enterprises Limited (T SEM Enterprises 1) 43 5!l
HFARMBEE - FEREERAOEERETT.0%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continueq)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of associated
corporations of the Company

EFRTBITHASRKRM - HEERK
MREEEPFZETRRE @

REATEBEBNEBRZITE

Approximate

Total number percentage

Name of associated of shares of issued

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of Interests corporations held (L) share capital

FriFien BEITREH

EENS 517 #mtE AR TS (L) L E =Rl
(Note 1)
oz,

Mr. MK Wan Beneficial owner, interest in a SEM Enterprises 7,700 77.0%

FRMBAgE controlled corporation, interest

held jointly with others
BmEA A RRERIEEZZ
mBEEMAHEEIFE 2 #E

Mr. CW Wun Beneficial owner, interest held SEM Enterprises 2,000 20.0%
FEREE jointly with others
EnEA A BEEMBHERE
HBEZEG:
Mr. Yu Beneficial owner, interest held SEM Enterprises 300 3.00%
BT E jointly with others
BmEA A BEEMBHE
FBEZ#m
Note: Wt

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

1. TLHERALIRZERMONIFE) (EEREFK
HAE1RGIZEXVED) ©

BREXFIRBEEN R_BEZF+ZA=+—
B BEARRNEEREBITHRAEREART R
HigkZzE (EEREFRBERMBEXVE) 2
Bin ~ HERERR (D B REE P A MR IFHER T
AAREE ST MRS RO FI2FRENRFEZ
SEfMBR WRERETIASITHNEERT
R B3P 2 R BK A

Annual Report Z£E#R & 2022 57



58 SEM Holdings Limited JBZ3EiE S RA T

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
interests or short positions of the persons, other than the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, in the Shares or underlying Shares
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRNKRG RABRARN Z #m
RXE

R "HF+-R=+—H BEEMEM"
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Long positions in the Shares RERRZEE
Total number Approximate
of Shares and percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held (L) share capital
FrisR 9 K BRITRAN
RRETE B #ENE MR D 4R B(L) o E = e
(Note 1)
oz
SEM Enterprises Beneficial interest (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
BEnm (Wa2)
Ms. Lam Yin Interest of spouse (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
Mzt foiBts (Hfat2)
Notes: Wt

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Ms. Lam Yin is the wife of Mr. MK Wan and is deemed to be interested in
the Shares which are interested by Mr. MK Wan under the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors
were not aware of any person (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest and short position in
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

Each of the controlling Shareholders has made an annual declaration
to the Company that for the Year 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, he/she/it and his/her/its associates have complied
with the terms of non-competition undertakings (“Non-Competition
Undertakings”) given in favour of the Company which are contained
in the Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking. Details of the Non-
Competition Undertakings are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
status of compliance by each of the controling Shareholders with
the undertakings in the Non-Competition Undertakings and as far
as the independent non-executive Directors can ascertain, there
is no breach of any of the undertakings in the Non-Competition
Undertakings.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or (i) require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
were entered into by the Company during the Year 2022 or subsisted
at the end of the Year 2022.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 22 January 2020, the Company conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) as incentive or reward
for contributions that the eligible participants have made or may
make to the Group. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to any employee, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, client, partner or joint-venture partner of the
Company or its subsidiary (including any Director or any director of
the Group’s subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time employment
with or otherwise engaged by the Company or any subsidiary at
the time when an option is granted to such person under the Share
Option Scheme or any person who, in the absolute discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for the Shares thereby linking their interest
with that of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, in
their absolute discretion make offer to the Eligible Participants. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from the date of adoption, after which period no further options will
be granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted or exercised prior thereto or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme (together
with options which may be granted under any other share option
schemes) shall not exceed such number of Shares as equals to 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the Listing Date.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each grantee (including both exercised or
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board, but in any event will not be less
than the highest of () the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date of the particular option, which must be a
business day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
shown in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date of the particular
option; and (i) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date of the
particular option.

There were no share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme nor were any share options granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption date and up to the date of this annual report. The
total number of Shares available for grant under the scheme was
200,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 31 to 47 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conduct, employment and the environment. The
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”, which forms part of
this annual report, is set out on pages 64 to 90 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has material impact on the business and operation of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the minimum public float required under the Listing Rules during the
Year 2022.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and has
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters,
which include the review of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year 2022.

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the
Company on 30 November 2021 to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year 2022 have been
audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Man Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2022
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is principally engaged in provision of E&M engineering
services. Over a decade of development, the Group realises
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) are indispensable
aspects to be incorporated in long-term development strategy. With
this regard, the Group gradually enhances operational practices and
develops ESG standards in a sustainable manner. Looking forward,
the Group commits to establish a corporate culture that is better
aligned with the expectations from stakeholders.

ESG governance structure

The Board holds the overall responsibility to oversee the Group’s
ESG objectives, strategies, priorities, targets and goals, as well as the
related policies and frameworks. Meetings are arranged regularly to
evaluate the effectiveness of the current policies and procedures and
develop appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance. In
addition, the Group’s business and functional departments worked as
ESG working groups, which assist to monitor the implementation of
relevant strategies and collect data in their respective areas.

Reporting boundary

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”), which summarises the
Group’s initiatives and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) for the
Year 2022. The ESG Report covers the business impacts of its E&M
engineering services in Macau and Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2022
—EC_FIRIE - g RERNRE

INTRODUCTION (continued) BE @

Reporting principles

RERA @)

The ESG Report has been prepared based on four reporting #R&T5IRIBR & LRI EE27FRHAVIRIE « 1
principles which are in compliance with the Environmental, Social and &R &AM EIE5|INIERERA4REE -
Governance Reporting Guide set forth in Appendix 27 to the Listing

Rules.

Materiality

EEMN

Quantitative

21t

Consistency

— it

Balance

T

The Group undertook materiality assessment to ensure the ESG Report addresses concerns
from stakeholders. The assessment started from identifying ESG issues from four different
aspects, including environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating
practice and community investment. Based on the 24 issues identified, interviews and
questionnaires were conducted to collect opinions from internal and external stakeholders.
For details of the assessment result, please refer to the section headed “Materiality
assessment” in the ESG Report.

REBETERME L LUHERESGHR S 7t 0 R RFH &R L - SHLIE @R RN A
ERBAESCHE  OFERERE - EERFIER SEBHARMERE - BRIESHT
M24E%RE > AERETHKREERADE  MKERNERIMNIFHENE R - BT
HERIEIR A2 RAESGHRE B A M T —Hie

To ensure stakeholders can have a better understanding of this ESG report, all
methodologies, assumptions, and source of conversion factor used to calculate the KPIs are
disclosed in respective sections in the ESG report.

RIERE M EEMNEF M T BAESGER S > B ARt EMRBENIERN A E ~ R&
HME R B NESCGIR S HEEINE -

Unless stated otherwise, the Group’s methods used to calculate the KPIs are consistent with
last year.

RAEBRBN REBRRGTEAREGEIEENF EFHEF -

This ESG Report is prepared on an objective and unbiased manner to ensure that the
information provided reflects the true picture of the Group’s performance.
KESGHREUEFEH - TRAFHNANGEE ) UEFRAEENENRMAEREZENES

B e
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INTRODUCTION (continued) HE @
Stakeholder engagement Fin&EsH

Listening to stakeholders is one vital mean in assisting the Group to  EEFHENER W AEBRIE A EH
identify and balance risks from difference perspectives, this helps it to B R FHEMBHNEZE H R 2 — > BN A EE T
develop policies and set corporate goals. The Group keeps abreast of TEHHREZELHXBEZ AEEFAIBERE
stakeholders’ expectations through various communication channels. & 7 RFMHENPE - BEFHEBEBENE
Below sets forth the channels used for communication with respective B &5 ©

stakeholder group.

Stakeholder Group Communication Channel
&R BERE
Customers e Customer satisfactory surveys e ZEFEMEERT
£ = e Project meeting e IEHEH
Employees e Annual appraisal s FEE
== e Training o BIF|

e Meetings s EBE

e Internal announcement o NEAM
Suppliers/Sub-contractors e Project meeting o IBEEEH
HeEs HEE e Supplier assessment o HEERTHE

e Site visiting o BEMIER
Investors/Shareholders e General meeting e REKRE
B’EE BRE e Annual and interim reports o FEKTHRE

e Circular/announcement o BN
Community groups e Corporate website o NEAEL
HEEE e Industrial dinner o TEMRE

e Corporate social responsibility activities EHEEEEE

The Group values the feedback from stakeholders. If you have any ZKTEB ERVIFTH ENKREBER - BT
thoughts and suggestions on the ESG Report, please share themto W HESGHRE B ERBEZREZ  FEB
the Group at general@semhld.com. general@semhld.comEL A E£ & 3 = o
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INTRODUCTION (continueq) #Ew
Materiality assessment BAM TG

A materiality matrix was developed based on the replies from HAEBERBENENTEHICE AR > I FE
stakeholders, which 16 critical issues were identified. Among the E16EEBEZBE -NEEZRET > H944% A EE
critical issues, approximately 44% are related to employment and EHB TERBR > XN %EESEZREM
labour practices, followed by operational practices at approximately — U &I25%E2IRIZ{RE G R o

31%, and environment protection at approximately 25%.

. £) 20
» ()22 (e 17
5 21 ) A 10
012 On"
© 2 N1 Qo9
013 D14 A 15
@5
@1 @3 6
@2 @8
@4
) 18
19 ® 24

IMPACT ON STAKEHOLDERS H {7 EH

@7

IMPACT ON BUSINESS ¥ ¥FEHg &

Environment Employment and Operational Community
@ protection g labour practices @ practices @ investment
RIERE BEKRSITER EESHR HERE
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INTRODUCTION (Continued)

Materiality assessment (Continued)

Details of the 24 issues identified for materiality assessment are listed

BE @
BAM T @

BAM B BI24EZENF BRI T

below:

1 Air emission G 13 Other benefits and welfare g
BERBER HAth 5B R Ex

2 Noise pollution @ 14 Prevention of child labour and forced labour g
IRER 5 b2 T R agflss T

3 Wastes management 15 Safety working environment and g
EEEYEE G occupational hazards

Z2HNTERIERBEDE

4 Dust pollution @ 16 Development and training g
D EETS Zk ERRIE

5 Water use and efficiency O 17 Quality assurance @
IKERE R R = HERTE

6 Energy use and efficiency @ 18 Protection of intellectual property rights @
BEREA R E IREEFNHERE

7 Packaging materials @ 19 Consumer data protection @
BEE Y HEEHRRE

8 Natural resource management G 20 Anti-corruption @
TABRER REE

9 Climate change G 21 Whistle-blowing policy @
RIRE1E FIMBER

10 Employment management g 22 Supply chain management @
BEEIE HAEEEIE

11 Discrimination and equal opportunity Q 23 Sub-contractor management @
IR TS NEHEIE

12 Promotion and compensation system Q 24 Community investment @

BT R B E

HtEerRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group strives to identify sources that may have potential
direct and indirect impacts to the environmental from its operation
in various aspects including the use of materials and resources,
waste management, water pollution and air emission. In case any
are identified, the Group commits to work against these sources
to minimise the impact and seek alternatives to work around.
Environment management system was established focusing on
wastes reduction and resources saving and efficiency which will be
discussed in turn below.

During the Year 2022, the Group was not prosecuted for any breach
of any applicable environment laws and regulations, including but
not limited to Law no. 2/91/M regarding the environment law of
Macau, Law no. 8/2014 regarding the law of prevention and control
of ambient noise, Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 358 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

Emissions

Sources of emissions

The Group’s E&M works mainly consisted of supply, installation and
maintenance of various electrical system such as energy supply
system, escalator and lift, heating system, ventilation system, air
conditioning system, low voltage system, distribution board and
switchboard, communication lines system, building automation
system, lightning protection system, fire detection and protection
system, security and alarm system, and plumbing and drainage
system.

These works are usually manual works which do not require intensive
heating process (e.g. welding), and do not involve the use of heavy
machines and equipment. As such, air emissions resulted from
heating and fuel combustion activities are limited.

IRIG (ReE
FEBRNNZEEHNEETIHIRIBEMN
ERMEREERENKR @EERYH KA
B BERYEE KSR RERIR - W H R E
FBEXENRR FEBAENZFRIRET
RE REBRERMD UBRERAFRE-TE
EEZUFENROERY) BHHNBERKESS
RNIRIGEERM SR T X o

RIEZIZEE AEETERERTAER
NIRBZEREEMZIEST @FEEFRER
F2/91/MSE7E GLRMRIBMELAMS) 5
8/20145% 51 (RN AR R IEFIIRIZ R S WA
B BEAPEINB(ERSLETEA D RE
BIEBISE358E (EEYI R B IRA) o

HEm

HEA 2R R
FEERETETIZOEEBERARHMEE
ZEEFRE WERHERG BHHEBERE
BHERG EBRRG  CRRG BERSR
ERKEBE BEREARK - BFEHLER
M-ERE NKFARRERR  ZERR
ER20 UREERFKRM

ZEIRBEUAFRE EFREMABRE
(iR - BEERERELHSE RRE AL
EMER R EHR G R B E LR BE R BER AR
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continuea)
Emissions (Continued)

Sources of emissions (Continued)

For waste emissions, the Group does not generate any hazardous
waste, and wastage of construction materials is the only non-
hazardous waste generated from its works. These wastages are
usually scraps cut off from materials, such as cables and copper,
during the installation process due to difference in size of the materials
employed and the dimension of the working structure. However,
the amounts of wastages generated from works are limited. Scraps
are disposed to on site collection facilities which are managed by
employers or main contractors.

General activities associated to its business operations will also
generate emissions. They include daily general usage of gasoline
fuels, electricity and water from staff quarters, fuels consumed from
motor vehicle for travelling between construction sites, and paper
usage for construction drawing and general documentation.

Measures and initiatives

As the generation of emissions from the Group’s operations are
minimal, except for maintaining the current level of emissions, the
Group has not established any reduction targets yet. However, the
Group is committed to continually explore the possibilities of further
reduction opportunities in the future. Despite the absence of emission
targets, the Group continuously employs the following measures to
maintain the way to build in a sustainable manner.

Waste management is always a crucial subject of the Group as it
creates great cost saving opportunities. With this regard, the Group
reviews consistency of workings, drawings and specifications to avoid
wastages of material as a result of possible re-work. For procurement,
the Group purchases materials with the most suitable size to reduce
excessive cut-offs and re-use scraps materials where possible.

With respect to air emissions, the Group promotes resource saving
and efficiency to reduce emissions for its activities from staff quarters
and general offices. For details of the measures and initiatives, please
refer to the section headed “Use of resources” in this ESG Report.

IRIZRE @
HERY) &)

B RIR (@

MERYHEMMES  ~EBTEEETANESE
Y BRMERYIBEIREENE—ES
BRY ZEERVERHEREBRETHNF
BAMHRT B ITRREBHNR T RIS
(N BE KR TIEI TR 28T TIREE
NERMHBERER -BRERERNBRENAE
EAEBEENRBWRERERA-

HEFBEBEEBN—REBTEELESFRY -
HEEAEGRN AR BT EERERA
KFERET M2 BB BB TR
LU 32 SRR ;e — AR XA+ P FR B9 AR 3R ©

15t K (85

MR AEEEEELENBIREDR D RERER
BYFEIOK T 5 » A [ i R B E R R BEE 1R ©
AT REBER R TERRRRE— T BB
EHRIEM -BELESRER  EAEEDNRE
BEIMUTHERUES I FEER S NETT
Big-

BEYEE-—EAFEENEZIF RESH
RIEHEMETNEARKE Bt AEBREE
BIE BARERN - UBEREARE
BMMREME -BRBMS > TEERBRI R
BEBIMEL LUBV B2 MY E R R SERVIE R
TEEERERMN-

MERHEMME  aEERETBES —RPSE
RIARBTIREHNERKESWE  LUNLHBE
R4 - BRI R B5ERRIEFIR S5 2RI AESGIR &
Mg RERI—6-
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continuea)
Emissions (Continued)

Measures and initiatives (Continued)

Below sets out the KPlIs for different types of emissions during the
Year 2022.

IRIEBEFRE @
BEn Y @
e RE=E @)

TXEHIARER RN —F Z — FERIRM
RAAMIEIR

Unit 2022 2021
Efi ZEICE —BI-fF
Gaseous fuel consumption emissions  RESIAELHFEHEY
NOx emissions ﬁ%f EEERR kg T3 96,609.20 27,460.62
SOx emissions ine=Nokz1356/) kg T2 483.05 136.62
Vehicles emissions =Lt 36
NOx emissions [RESIHRY) kg T3 0.76 0.78
SOx emissions =R k=3¢ kg T2 0.02 0.02
PM emissions PMEEHY) kg T3 0.06 0.06
Greenhouse gas emission in COze BERBHERY
MZEEREEHE)
Scope 1 - Direct emissions HEN-BEERWY
Stationary combustion sources BEEMER tonnes M 1.58 0.45
Mobile combustion sources BENNER tonnes M 3.03 342
Scope 2 - “Energy Indirect” emissions BE2- TR H
Electricity purchased SNEES Note 1 fif5£1  tonnes M 74.81 70.89
Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions EERE Rl S 16y
Paper waste disposed at landfils HEBERERER tonnes M 12.58 4.96
Electricity used for processing fresh BRI BRIk K
water and sewage by government SKERNEN
department Note 2 [ffz£2  tonnes M 0.37 0.53
Non-hazardous waste BEEEN
Paper FiA tonnes [ 2.62 1.03
Notes: Bzt -

1. For electricity, the emission factor of 0.620 kg/kWh and 0.710 kg/kWh
are available in Companhia de Electricidade de Macau’s Sustainability
Report 2021 and Hong Kong Electric’s Sustainability Report 2021
respectively.

2. For water, the emission factor of 0.171 kg/m® and 0.428 kg/m® are
available from Macao Water's Sustainability Report 2021 and Water
Supplies Department’s Annual Report 2020/21 respectively.

1. FBEIMS  HREE0.620T %/ TEELK
0.710F %/ TRE D EFIEHRND AR
AR _E_—EFENREEEREREBE T _—
FUFEERREPER-

2. BMEKMS BERREBOATITR LHRK

0.428F % /U A KB ARIRAPIERK -

_—FURBRRERSRABEZ T " —
FEEREPER-
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Use of resources

The Group keeps promoting green concepts to raise employees’
awareness about the environment footprint created from daily
operations. In order to build a green working environment, the Group
continuously develops and implements environmental policies and
practices in achieving resources saving and efficiency.

IREBEFRE @

BIRER

AEBMAEBESOES USSETHAEE
BIRERNBIERTNER AR EGENTHE
TBIE » A 2 B R B 5 R B R IR S R 2 3R L
BIRE RO RME -

7 S\ (@

o

GREEN
PROCUREMENT

R ERE

e Evaluate the usage
of materials to avoid
overstock
MR RIE R
BHrEFRS

e Purchase supplies with
recycled content

FE B AT [0 BIFEM

e Select energy efficiency
electrical appliances

EIZEAEBER
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq IRIR{REE ¢
Use of resources (Continued) BRER ®)

The Group’s major resources consumptions were sourced from
the electricity and water consumed by offices and staff quarters
for daily operation/living. The Group’s premises where they are
located did not encounter any issue in sourcing water. To ensure the
implementation of a low-carbon workstyle, the Group’s ESG working
group will actively review electricity and water bills to detect abnormal
consumption and investigate if any significant usages are noted.

As some of the Group’s management stationed in Hong Kong had
reduced the travel to Macau, several tenancies of the Group’s staff
quarters had ended since last year. As a result, the overall usage
of electricity and water from staff quarters have been reduced
accordingly. On the other hand, the overall increase of electricity and
water consumption of the Group’s offices and workshops were mainly
due to loner period of occupancy in Year 2022 as compared to last
year. The Group targets to reduce energy consumption intensity
continuously by inspiring its employees on conservation habitats and

FEBNTIEERHEDRERLAERELR
EHEEE LEPTHERNKE  AEBEFTEH
N5 PR UK B I RIS B AR I R R o A R R R AR T
ERAE > ZEBMESGL /AR RIS

EEERKEER NERERHE WHFEEM
%k@)ﬂ B REARE

MR AEESORBEEASR D 7 AHIERP
NRe AEBBE EFEURBRLEHMNETE
SEN AL ETEENERAEERAKE
BRERLD B —FH AEERAEREE
REERIHEEEREM DETEHR-E
_FEMNGARBERNLELEE -AEBMNER
EREXBEEBEMMVBIERENEAEIR
HEEE T TEREERHERE - TXEIE
FORHAEE R RENIEIR - BEMRHERR

regularly monitor the consumption of energy. Below sets out the KPls ~ EEEA AN EE B A FEFEHERT o
for the consumption of respective sources. The disclosure for the use
of packaging materials is not relevant to the Group’s businesses.
Unit 2022 2021
B - T
Energy consumption AEIRIHFE
Offices and workshops WNERE- kWh F E B 56,250.00 25,368.00
Staff quarters ETES kWh F E. B 58,202.00 62,756.00
Energy consumption intensity RERHERE kWh/unit 11,445.20 8,011.27
FTRE B
Water consumption IKGHEE
Offices and workshops WNERE- m?3 37 75 K 105.00 59.00
Staff quarters BIES me 37 5K 968.00 1,092.00
Water consumption intensity NCHFERE ma3/unit 214.60 164.43
KB

Miat: ERLESABEBRRIGROEKE RAZE
RKBEFERERRME THARERDHE-

Notes: The water consumption of several office premises are not included
above as the water is provided by building management and shared
among different tenants.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continuea

The environment and natural resources

Despite the Group’s E&M works will not have direct significant impact
to the environment, the quality of its works may lead to serious
environment issues, such as unintentional leakage, if the systems
are not properly installed. The Group committed to execute a robust
quality management system to ensure that the system can be
operated as intended. Details of the quality management system are
discussed under the section headed “Product responsibility” in the
ESG Report.

Climate change

With response to the defining issue of our time, the Group has
identified climate-related risks and evaluate the potential financial and
operational impacts on its business operation during the Year 2022.
With reference to the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate
related Financial Disclosures framework, the climate-related risks and
the corresponding mitigation measures are as follows:

Judging from the labour-intensive operations of the Group, acute risks
arising from storm, fold and heatwave will pose significant delay to the
projects’ progress. During the extreme weather events, workers may
not be able to commute to clients’” work site and affect the delivery
schedules of raw materials. In additions, the structure installed and
materials on site will also exposed to risk of damage, resulting in
financial losses. On the other hand, as majority of the Group’s works
are performed indoor, gradual changes in mean temperatures will lead
to higher chronic risk of occupational hazards due to stuffy working
environment.

Regarding to the physical risks identified above, project meetings
will be held regularly so that actions plan can be developed timely to
rectify any potential delays. Also, precaution measure to safeguard the
structure installed and materials on site are employed prior to possible
extreme weather events. They include, among others, (i) inspecting
drainage inlets to ensure water discharge will not be blocked and
installing water pump, if necessary, (i) using plastic sheeting to
keep floodwater out for temporary protection, and (i) wrapping and
securing materials on site. Furthermore, project team will inspect
the ventilation condition and employ ventilation fans on work sites to
prevent workers suffered from heatstroke.

IRIFRE @
IRIBRRAEIR

BEFAEENKEIRASHREELIERSE

TR HEMRAMEEAE HIRREETET
EYBRENRIEHEE INEINRR - AERE K
ERTRENBEEEERG  WHERRRENIZ
RERARET EE2EEAMNFHBNESGRE
MEmBEEI—Hatme

RIREE

HEHFANAELZE  AEBEHFRIEAE
R TGt S _FERHEEREEN
BEMBREEZE -K2EREMEBMYHER
REE TRAEERRYEZ > RIGER RS R ABEE
FRIEFEANT -

NEEBNFHEELERRKE AR HKkR
RREHERNMERBRSHEEEEENERLE
oMM RREMHME TAREEEZNER
FRIFREG UREERMENINEE I
51> IRIB R R BVAE B B A L TR T R AR IR R R
EREERR - Z—HH BRAEBBNAE D
THREERET FTHRBNZHECRERR
TRRIBMAMENRBEE SRR ERIEM-

HREHERMNNYERR ~EBERKEHRAD
MIEEg® UWEKKGIETEHE > AUEEM
BIERVRESR o IS ERIBE R E BB KRR EHMZ
A REBTERNERER RERSZEN
BRI - 2 EHEEE (Hh e ()iRask
KO ERIKOFSERE ) THESERFRTR
KR 5 (iyE R RB AR B LA > LUEERBS 1R EE ;
K(ifB R EERGM K L5 BB ERRE
BEBR TEILFRSEERRE  UMHLET
AFRZE -
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Employment

Human resources are the cornerstone of the Group, and the Group
commits to shoulder the responsibility to provide them with safe
working environment and support their career advancement.

The Group is subject to labour laws and regulations which includes,
but not limited to, Labour Relations Law, Employees’ Compensation
Insurance Ordinance, Social Security System, laws and regulations
for the employment of non-resident worker, regulation on prohibition
of illegal work and lists of restricted and prohibited works provided by
minors.

To ensure compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations,
the Group have established human resource management system to
govern, among others, recruitment process, hiring and termination
procedures, promotion and compensation system, health and safety
management and training and development program of the Group.

The Group respects human rights and strictly prohibited any act of
discrimination in the workplace. To ensure this can be eliminated,
standard performance criteria are used to ensure that every
employee are evaluated equally and consistently. Gender, age, race,
skin color, nationality, religion and political affiliation will never be a
factor for consideration of performance evaluation. In additions, the
Group encourages employee to voice out if any dishonorable act is
observed.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 82 (Year 2021: 66)
employees and directors with direct employment relationship, and the
overall Group’s employee turnover rate was 42% (Year 2021: 31%).
During the Year 2022, the Group had hired 47 employees, of which
approximately 96% were additional employees for project department
to cope with the Group’s business development in Hong Kong.

HE—ERERFIER

21"

ANERBTEBNER  ZEBR NN EES
HERULZENTHERE T IFERERREDN
BfEe

AEBABTH L EARRER BREEFTRR
(FBREFRE) - (BERERREN) - LERF
BHE) ~ (BRIMMEEERIBITMAR) ~ (FRLE
IBETIEREVURCREI R B LE R F ABY TAF
BE)e

RHERETHERES LARRER FEEEZIL
ANEBREERZ LUEE (HhaiE BES
B -ERMBRERERF B RFHMGIE  ERA
Z2EBURAERENIEINIRE RS -

FEBSEANEL BB T EBRVERK
RITR - REFRMEZFTRA RACHARES
MIEERRAENSHEEETFE—ROFTE %
AF B Be EE REKRBEERE
T EUBEREZNERBRER I REE K
REEEHREMAIRTARIBERER -

HE_ S F#+-A=+t—H &EFHLAES2
% (CEZ—F . 66%) BERERRBANEESRE
S RAEENEEREERAXA42% (ZE - —
Fi31%) RITE-_FE > KEBHERITS
BE > HHH06%AEEMMILES  ANEYH
KEBNEBNELRE
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR HE-RBERFIER @
PRACTICES (Continued)
Employment (Continued) B @
Below set forth KPls of the Group’s employment: TXEHIAE B RENRBRBERISE :
2022 2021
—E-C BT —F
Number of Turnover Number of Turnover
employees rate employees rate
EEAHK MR = EEAH TMARE
By gender Sk 3l E b
Male B4 65 50% 52 33%
Female g 17 13% 14 26%
By age group RERARE D
30 or below 30RE T T 22 67% 17 58%
31-50 31E505% 34 36% 27 36%
51 or above SIRIMU L 26 29% 22 10%
By job position BRIERE LS
Top and senior management RELEREERE 19 19% 13 24%
Middle management RAREERE 25 8% 24 22%
Entry level 4R 38 78% 29 48%
By geographical region & 29
Macau il 23 55% 28 28%
Hong Kong 5 59 35% 38 38%

Notes: The employee turnover rates are calculated using the number of i . EBERAXEEREEABBU S _—_FE
employees leaving employment divided by average number of EHREREAHEE.
employees for the Year 2022.
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR HE-EBERFILER»
PRACTICES (Continued)
Health and safety BERZE

Risks of accidents and injuries to workers in construction sites are ERETMT AMNENAEEREBE R LS - &
inherent. The Group has established occupational health and safety SEEBEVHERBHAZE2EERG UBEIE
management system to minimise accidents in the workplace and IBFFMEHURER/D » WHER T AR IR A2
ensure work sites are operated in compliance with relevant law and REIREE - R _Z - _FE > AEBTERR
regulation. In Year 2022, the Group did not receive any prosecutions ¥ BFEHEZE2EHERITE KREBRE 7208 (Z

in relation to occupational health and safety. The Group was reported :—fE #) THEEH B T7T100@E (T2 = —
2 (2021: Nil) incidents of work injuries, which lead to 100 (2021: Nil) £ : ) BANIEQ - AEESEI IR B L

lost days. The Group is pleased that no work-related fatalities have =R FH4ETIEEW
been occurred in the past three years.

@ ) (7 N

‘ SITE SUPERVISORS
TihEE

e Perform site visits and inspections regularly

s EHETEMERNRE

e Stop/suspend any unsafe acts and dangerous
operations

o I EHERAFLZE2NTAKRERIEE
e Review safety rules and policies regularly

s THABRZ 2B KRR

\ ¥
f S\ (@

.
A\

rQ' EMERGENCY PROTOCOL
Ll =i

e Report to site supervisor to ensure injured worker
receive immediate medical treatment

e AMIMTFERSE  UREREIALMERAE
e Report such work injury to the Labour Affairs Bureau/
Labour Department and insurer within the stipulated

time
s HRERBAMSE TEHRE, ¥ TEKRRBRATR
SEMAIEG

\ Z\
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Development and Training

As an E&M engineering company, the development and training
program heavily focus in the safety area. Due to the nature of the
Group’s operating practice, it often hires foreign workers from labour
quota and engages sub-contractors to carry out its works. As such,
the Group must provide adequate safety training to ensure employees
and employees of sub-contractors are familiar with the Group’s safety

policy.

QOur training programs are developed on project basis, this is because
the risk of injuries associated to the works content may vary. The
Group training programs cover various aspects which include, among
others, machine operation, work at height, work in hot weather, on-
site materials management, electricity application, fire prevention and
emergency procedure.

During the Year 2022, the Group offered a total of 3,800 (Year 2021:
2,341) hours of internal safety training courses to 410 (Year 2021:
215) workers, including our employees and employees of sub-
contractor, and the average training hours completed per worker
was approximately 9 (Year 2021: 11) hours. As the employees of
sub-contractor do not have direct employment relationship with the
Group, the calculation for percentage of employees trained for sub-
contractor is not applicable.

HE-EERFIER @

EEY e

ERKETREAR REAFIIHI TEMER
B -ANTERSERHROME  HEEK
SIFRRERMEIANTLERYBEEARIIE
Ft > AEBLAERHBENNRZ2IEI > UERF
BERDEHENEEATFIEENZEHR-

FEBEBEIG BB IRFEEMSIE > IETHER
S TERBERNZERBRAIERTR A&
BEEIFERESEER  2F (HHaR) #
HBRF-BEFE -BRRXRIF THMEE
B-BHERA -HAKRESRERF-

NS THFE AEEAS3,800% (ZTEZ—F
E:2341%) TA (BEXEMANEERSEEN
BE) L4410 ( CTEZ—FEE : 215) B/
MRS 2 21EIR1E > 54 T AR FEE
B#AL9 (CEZ—FE 1) B/NF -BRD
BENEEEAEREEZEERMF  EIbst
BEHERTilEEG DL AEA -
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR

PRACTICES (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

HE-EBERFIER @

BB R IE

2022 2021
k- St T
Percentage Average Percentage Average
of employees training of employees training
trained hours trained hours
TIEEESL FHUEINE ZIEEEALE  FEEIEH
Workforce by gender R DHES
Male B 97% 7 50% 18
Female 2z 44% 15 36% 25
Sub-contractor SEH N/A 78 H 9 N/A REH 10
Workforce by job position BRIEEfIEI2NES
Top and senior management REKRSHREIEE 79% 13 69% 21
Middle management RAREIRE 68% 2 50% 20
Entry level AR 100% 9 34% 17
Sub-contractor SEH N/A 78 9 N/A @ 10
Note: The percentage of employees trained is calculated using number of A3 . ZilREB D LESIEEASE SGU T - —
employees trained divided by number of employees at the end of the FERBREAHGE
Year 2022.
Labour standards % TR

The Group strictly prohibits any child or forced labour, or any unfair
treatment to our employees and does not employ staff who are
below 18 years of age. With this regard, the Group has established
recruitment procedure which requires that identity, age and other
personal information of all job applicants must be verified to ensure
that they are physically and conditionally qualified to be hired. If any
incidents of above are discovered, the Group will immediately stop
the child from working, report to the local labour bureau in time for
any incidents of child labour and investigate the cause and factor
leading to forced labour. In addition, disciplinary actions will be taken
to punish the wrongdoer.

During the Year 2022, there were no reported non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations relating to preventing child or forced
labour.

FEBBRREILEMETRRGFE T NHEE
EREMARFRHFE FAERA 18 mUTE
Teomltt 7EECHIERBRER  EXMEARZ
BFTERBENS O FhRxEMEAER X
ERESNEBRIFHTaRBAER WNHIFE
ALt SEG AEESUAMRIEZRETF &
ROEMSBRREEMNELSF AEERR
I THRAKRER - Ib5h > A& B 7 SR EAS
BED BIEARNETAAN

A— T — —

TR TFE - AERTERSEAERERH
By 1E 2 T sl5g 25 TRVARREARIARAYIB R -
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply chain management

Suppliers and sub-contractors are vital business partner of the Group
as they contribute to assist the Group towards quality excellence.
Supplier/sub-contractor management policy was established which
defines the robust requirements and procedures in monitoring the
selection of suppliers and sub-contractors. Standard acceptance
procedure, such as obtaining attainment and business registration
documents, sample testing and site visiting, will be performed before
new supplier and sub-contractor are engaged. All approved suppliers
and sub-contractors are recorded in an internal approved list and are
subject to regular evaluation. Generally, the Group will invite more than
one supplier/sub-contractors from the approved list for each order/
sub-contracting work for quotation purpose. During the selection and
evaluation process, the Group will consider factors including, among
others, product quality, on-site performance, labour management,
safety management system and environmental responsibility.

The Group also requires its supply chain partners to uphold the
Group’s principles of ethical business conduct thereby minimizing the
environmental and social risk that may be encountered. Any suppliers
or sub-contractors with inferior past records of material environmental
or social accidents, such as excessive pollutions discharges to the
environment, and exploitation of workers, will be remove from the
approved suppliers list.

HE-EEER
g IR

HEBRDEEAEEREFEENEBSF
B REARERNBHAERERSERET
HIFHEM AEEERUHER SDEEEE
B ZHRAEEZEEREHER RO EEE
BRERREF RERMEESRDEEZA
RAITRENEWNER NEREEREEET
X AR RIS ER FRARB A NHER
RO EBEHYEEINAERAEE ) WARETER
e —RME  AEBRRUBAIBERF — 4
UEHER " DEEMESHEIE NEIRE
THRE-RRAEATEBRET ZEEBRETRE
mEB - RERR - FTER - Z2EEBHER
BRIEEEEAR-

FEBREREHBRESFEHRAESERNS
FEBBRTRA M EBIMNRERAEE
EEREERE - EABERERRBEHHEEH
FEHAFREHRNHEERND SR WEREH
BB Z SR RHE T > BBl e A
EErhfR o

2022 2021
- T

Number of suppliers by geographical region ##3th& 8| 3 F L FERFEE
Hong Kong 58 75 55
Macau P 49 43
China s 3 3
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product responsibility

Quality control is one crucial process to the Group’s business as
this is the foundation leading to the Group’s success. The Group
established comprehensive policy governing the required procedure
to perform at the inception and completion of a project. To ensure the
quality of project implementation, members are assigned to project
teams according to complexity and scale of the project, and each
team member was assigned with specified duties.

Site supervisor is responsible for monitoring the quality of works
of employees and sub-contractors in real time. Project’s progress
meetings are held regularly to ensure our works meet customers’
specification, completed according to schedule and comply with all
relevant regulatory requirement. Furthermore, inspection checks are
performed for all materials, machineries and equipment delivered
before they are employed.

In addition, the Group, together with the customers, will perform site
acceptance test for all electrical system installed to ensure conformity
to specifications. If any defects detected within the defect liability
period, the project manager would investigate, and workers will be
arranged to address the defects. During the Year 2022, the Group
have not received any complaint or request for product recall from our
customers due to quality, safety and health issue in relation to works
performed.

As the Group’s business process does not involve advertising and
labelling practices nor possess significant consumer data, the impacts
relating to the protection of intellectual property and consumer data
are relatively immaterial to the Group. Nevertheless, to protect our
brand, all of our business logo have been properly registered. In the
event of intellectual property infringement by third parties, the Group
will engage its legal counsel to take necessary action against them.
In addition, all the software and information system employed in daily
operations are with legitimate licenses. On the other hand, contracts
between the Group and its employees contain a confidentiality clause
to prevent the disclosure of sensitive information. Proper internal
control procedures are employed in the Group’s operational and
information technology system to ensure that information will only be
access by authorised personnel/department of the Group.

HE-ZEERw

HEERNATEREBNERERRE REAER
FEBBREHINRE -AEBEFIERENE
BRBRTREFLBATHREFHEEER &
BEREBBRNER  ~EERFEEBNERN
RREODEEERSERE  EAEREBMRE
DECIEERS -

ITHErEASNREERERDEBNIFE
R AEERERRTEEEESS  UEFRL
BYEERERKMATR LT 5P AERE
EER I REERFERAZA HEXNTH
FREME AR EETIRE -

o AEERRAT A HRAEMAECSZENER
RAETRGRUCAE > LIRS R HR
MREEETHRNERTARR BEELE
o ETHE TR T AREZFHRE - R -Z
T HFE - AERTERZERZRAEAMATIREN
B8 22 KREEMEME S ERRFE R
AEEX-

HRTEENEBSRABRTE I RESRIZHIE
B EEEHEE R RILRRENHER
RHBEERBEAMNT ENAEREMSHE I
AEE-RM > RRERFPIVDE > RFIAEN
BERBAVEZAAEMHEE=ZAEL
Ao ER AEERRFEAZEBENERER
VENITH UL BEEERERNAARN
REERMIEBEEFIE -S—HHE 5
HHEEFIUNGHNEHA —BFREMHER UL
BFREMNPARE AEENEEREERKRER
ERAEENARERRER  UEFRERED SR
FERREAR EFIER -
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continueq)
Anti-corruption

The Group commits to maintain a corporate culture with integrity,
probity and accountability through the establishment of relevant anti-
corruption policies. Code of conduct, conflict of interest policy and
privacy and confidentiality information were covered in the Group’s
internal control manuals which clearly defines the moral standards
it desired. In additions, corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is
strictly prohibited. Whistleblowing policy was established to allow
employees to report any misconduct or malpractice events observed
on a confidential platform, and will be duly investigated by the Group’s
senior management or audit committee. Any matters of genuine
concern are to be thoroughly investigated by the management and
actions will be taken accordingly.

Trainings and employee handbook, including information relating
to anti-corruption, were arranged and circulated to employees
and directors at the commencement of employment and during
employment (if there are any updates) to ensure employees are aware
of the philosophy, objectives, and policies of the Group.

During the Year 2022, there was no bribery, extortion, fraud or money
laundering found, and no legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees.

HtE-SEER®
REE

AEBRNREBS EHERREBBRRTH
By EEREBHNEREXC - AERBIABPIZES
FRRETAZER ) EmERERUAKRDRE R
BER HRBAEMRIERRE I &
BRERATZANEE  FARIEIEF- RAERIESR
BHER UL EERRBTARSMERENEM
FETAVERBEMH TREFEESHREERE
NEREZEGETEERE AEEMERAER
REERFNEE W RIERTE

IR 2 PR I R R R R B K (R R HA R (W
EEM AEENESHUETFM(BEERR
ERVER) URFRES THRAEENES
RRER

TR CFECAEERUESRBER HR
HREF RO RIS TS R B A EE A
EBENEBITRIRERNERRE -
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SOCIAL - COMMUNITY

Community investment

The Group commits to support the communities through social
participation and had dedicated its focus in contributing the
environment, labour needs and health. The Group actively shares
social affairs to employees so as to increase their awareness to the
community, and eventually repay the society through participating
in social events and helping vulnerable groups. Looking forward,
the Group hopes to join hand with stakeholders to better serve the
community.

The foremost priority for the Group is to provide our employees with
a safe and healthy and comfortable working environment. During
the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has taken the following
precautionary measures at its workplaces to minimise the risk of
transmission:

° Enhancing implementation of hygienic measures in all
workplaces and provide guidance to strengthen employees care

for employees;

° Providing hand sanitizers inside company and workplace to fulffill
employees’ hand sanitizing needs;

e  Any person who has symptoms of fever, or other respiratory
symptoms would be advised to seek medical advice and would
be refused entry to workplaces;

e Arranging employees to work in shifts and work from home; and

° Encouraging employees to receive vaccination.

HE-HE
HERE

FEERNNBBEMAESREIFTE  WEER
RBE B TERRBEFLEM - AEEIRB
HEEBNZNEEH URSHREHHENE
#o WEBBS MR LS R EESSHERERAER
BHE -REXRR AEERZUERFNERTS
B> BIF A HERSS

AEEBNEETERARERERZE BE
B TEIRIR o Ak (COVID-19) B IBHAR
REEBTEH T EHPTIRE T FEBRHE I - LARF
BRERARRERE !

o HEPMEILFZFAIMABTEERR MM
551 LUNEEB T E TRAES S ;

s HAABKEBARSRHAFR LURERE
R FEX

s ERECUAZFERNHEMIPREZRRIE
MBI ATRIERE > WEEHEA LS
Ffr 5

s ZHESBHIIFERERMA; K

s WmENBTIEEEEH-
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ESG CONTENT INDEX

RIB-HEREBABTERSI

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
e
[Em BARUER BEEH
A. Environmental
AIRIR
Emissions Al General Disclosure Environmental
BER) —AR I EEEE protection
Information on: IRIGRE
BERBERRAERBIN S KRR TP -H
EREEEEN
a) the policies; and
a) BERER ;K
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
b) BFHETABEAZENHEBERARGINE
Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
BB EE S AR R R B o B
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse Emissions
gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, B
intensity.
B @EE 1) kisRERE @E 2 ) A= E
(UAMASt &) K WNER) BE -
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emissions
appropriate, intensity. B
FREEBEREEYRE QRS k (MER) BE-
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Emissions
where appropriate, intensity. BEB
FTEAREEEYEZ UUWEEE) &k WER) BE-
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and step taken to Emissions
achieve them. BE
HMPRET I BEN & B 1R e A B L B R P EREXAY
FERo
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Emissions
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction BER Y

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HINEEEERBEEEYNS E RIS ILAY
BEE R R AEREE BRI P 5 o
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE-HEREBARZTRI @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
3]
fEm BEMIERE BESH
A. Environmental
(Continued)
AIRIE (&)
Use of resources A2 General Disclosure Use of resources
BIREERA — R EEE BIRER
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BRERER (BIEER KR EMEME) BIBER -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Use of resources
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity. BIREA
RELEDMNERE R HBEER B foh) 2
2 UTETREE REE-
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Use of resources
BIEKEREE- BIREA
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and Use of resources
steps taken to achieve them. BIRER
HMPRET IS REA MR B R R AEDEEBE R
PREXH9 25 B o
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Use of resources
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set BIRER
and steps taken to achieve them.
HEUSK BB AR KR I BRI SR8 » LUK PRET IR A
KM B R R AEDEE B IEPTREBI P 5 o
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Use of resources
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit BHIRfEA
produced.
Sk mPT A EEMENEE (UMETE) &k WER) &
FEBMGLSE-
The Environment and A3 General Disclosure The environment and
natural resources —AR R FE A natural resources
RIERKXAER Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on RIERRAER
the environment and natural resources.
BREETABRIERRAABRENEAZENEE -
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on The environment and

the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
BRI HIRIE R RABE RN E AT E KRB R
BEAMEENITE-

natural resources
RIERKAER
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE - HEREBRARTRI @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
f:d
fEm BUIER  HEt BESHEH
A. Environmental
(Continued)
AIRIE (&)
Climate change A4 General Disclosure Climate change
Rz — R EEE RIZE1E
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.
HREHEORKRAIEGHETAELERENEAR
EAERAE BERIEER ©
Ad A Description of the significant climated-related issues Climate change
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the RIEEE
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BB RO HETAELERENERRIEHE
EH KEHTH
B. Social
BAtE
Employment B1 General Disclosure Employment
= — IR EEE =
Information on:
BRAFMN R EE BB RS A TR R TF
e Znlb RIERUREMFEREND
a) the policies; and
a) BEREK ;&
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
b) BTFHETABEAFZENEMEIZRRINE
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group Employment
and geographical region. 1%
R BERE  FRARN Rt R DNEE LS -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
geographical region. (=3

RIER s ERAER R E R DRV EE MK LR
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

HERERKS

RIF-HERERBABTRS @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
3k
EmE BUIER  Ht BESHEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.AtE ()
Health and safety B2 General Disclosure Health and safety
REREZS — R EEEE REHEZS
Information on:
ERRHEZ2IHRERFREEERREHENTE
B :
a) the policies; and
a) BEREE; &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
b) THETABEAXEZNEENZERRAGINE
ﬂ o
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in Health and safety
each of the past three years including the Year 2021, BREHEZS
BE=F (BE_Z2°-—FE) SEFRAITHNAER
bt o
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and safety
RITEB/ERITIEE - fREREE R
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and safety
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. BREHEZS
BRI E R BERE 2 2 DURERAIIT R
BEm ke
Development and training B3 General Disclosure Development and
EIEYaE —MRIEEEEIE training
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills B3Rt
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
BRRAEEEIT LIFB S H# R SERVBUER o #
MIEANES) o
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Development and
employee category. training
BHURREEEBSNRIMEER AL E R RIE
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Development and
gender and employee category. training
BRI REESLERE D SREETMRZ NN TFITE R R

8o
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIF-HERERBABTRS @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference

f:d

fEm BUIER  HEt BESHEH
B. Social (Continued)
B4t E @
Labour standards B4 General Disclosure Labour standards
2 TAEH — R EEIE AR

Information on:

BRAM L& T K aghles TH :

a) the policies; and

a) BREKR, R

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forces labour.

b) BEBTHZFETABEAZENERMEIZRRINSE

B4 Description of measures to review employment practices Labour standards
to avoid child and forced labour. 2T %R
A T IR R B AV B TR LUB o B T e sR g5 T o

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices LLabour standards
when discovered. T AR
T B IR ER S R EOH R A R B P ERERAY 5 B8 o

Supply Chain management B5 General Disclosure Supply chain
HrEEEE — R EEFE management
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of HrEREIE
the supply chain.
BIEMEENIRIE RS RREEE -
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region Supply chain
management
Rt DR REEEE o HEREIE

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being management
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored. HEREIE
BRI RHERNIES > mERTHERIBG T
FEEEE » UM TREER %

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they management
are implemented and monitored. HrEREIE
M A B R e S B IR B VIR IR A it & R AV 18
B> LU AERAIT R B ZR 5 7k o

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply chain
preferable products and services when selecting management
suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. HEEEE

HEEREHEEREESARRERRRBAIE
B> LURBRIRAT R B T3 05
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE-HEREBARZTRI @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
3k
EmE BUIER  Ht BESHEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.AtE ()
Product responsibility B6 General Disclosure Product
EmEE — AR EEEIE responsibility
Information on: EmEE
BRfMEEERMBRFENREEZ - BEE - REE
ThREE MR EN
a) the policies; and
a BEREKR; &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
b) BFHETABEAXENEMEIERRINE
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to Product
recalls for safety and health reasons. responsibility
BENBEXERQHMPEZ 2 EERIERMER W EmET
B
B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints Product
received and how they are dealt with. responsibility
BERNERMRBNEFEEURER S E EmEE
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Product
protecting intellectual property rights. responsibility
Ho ot B A S I (R PR AN ERE B RERVIB A 0 EmEE
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product
procedures. responsibility
it E 20T B2 K E mEIWE T o EmEE
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Product
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. responsibility
HUE B BB RHMRE R FABREBER » MU BRI MAT R & EmEE

Bk
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE - HEREBRARTRI @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
f:d
fEm BUIER  HEt BESHEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.AtE ()
Anti-corruption B7 General Disclosure Anti-corruption
REE — R EEEE REE
Information on:
BRIB LR ~ 1R s IFF RO B8R0 ¢
a) the policies; and
a) BEREK; &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
Iaundenng
b) THETABEAXZENHENEERRAGNE
/ﬂ °
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Anti-corruption
practices brought against the issuer or its employees REE
during the Year 2022 and the outcomes of the cases.
RZE __Em“ﬁf*ﬁ/\TE{EakHﬂtaé ENE
SRR BB R R
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. REE
e E R R RER  URBERARTRERA
Ee
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Anti-corruption
directors and staff. REE
HirmEERETRENRESE-
Community investment B8 General Disclosure Community
HERsE —AR R EIE investment
Policies on community engagement to understand the HERE
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRUHE2ERTHREEMTHEREENBREE
BameEEtENmiBER
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community
EigREE- investment
HELSE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community
EEIHEMBAER investment

HerRE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIANZBENR S

Moore Stephens CPA Limited

K| MOORE

801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

T +852 2375 3180
F +852 23753828

www.moore.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SEM
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 100 to 175, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

REEtEER

Recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts

TEEEH B B Rt i T IZAR 75 5 #4989

We identified the recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts as a key audit
matter due to the involvement of significant management
estimates in determining the contract revenue for each
electrical and mechanical engineering services contract in
progress.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group recognised revenue of MOP115,161,000 and
MOP175,034,000 mainly from provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering services to hotels and casinos,
public, commercial and residential properties in Macau
and Hong Kong, respectively by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period as disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements. As set out in Notes 4 and 5 to the
consolidated financial statements, the amounts of revenue
recognised reflect the management’s estimate of each
contract’s outcome and stage of completion, which were
based on the input method by considering the proportion
of contract costs incurred for the work performed to the
end of the reporting date, relative to the total estimated
costs of the contract at completion.

ARREESETPENREM T RERBSHONEIW
mFY REXREEE M HFIR SRR BB R
TRERBEANWmHER SERESEE

REE_Z - _F+_A=+—HLEEE EEHH
WERMASAINE  SEBEKRLENRREHREGNVERS
5T BB ES RE SR U 75 115,161,000 F9 75 K& 175,034,00078
M TERED RS BNAEE KRS A
H - BEREEYEREES HREM TR - WHRE
M IRRM 4 REE ) ERRBIN G BRI EIEE
BERNERNTERMEENG HENERKEBNRRS
HEAR BT IR EEN S E AR &AM Gst4R
B 7S LB 2218 Fr (6 AR B9 88 A% ©

FAREtEIE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

R ZHBEMITRIZEMBE FHER A

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue from
electrical and mechanical engineering services contracts
included:

° Understanding key controls on how management
estimates and revises the total contract costs and
margins and recognises revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts;

e Assessing the reasonableness of the total estimated
contract costs of significant projects by checking against
quotations, agreements or other correspondences
provided by subcontractors or suppliers, on a sample
basis;

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated profit
margins of significant projects, on a sample basis, taking
into account of the complexity and duration of the
projects and margins of similar completed projects;

HPEBRERBE BN REM T ERBEONRENRESF
25N

s THREMEERUNMAMGE RMESTEEHNM AU KIES
RE BN RN ITEZRB S 2 T EZEHIET ;

>

s BERENEMAHEHREMHNKRE HEIHEME
R HRFHEEARRB MR SOMERNGENK ;

s KEtREENERMEAFENBEREUETIREENE
A iR HEEREB G FERN SRR ;



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BT EE @
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RSBt HIE BT R IERARE S BEN S &

Recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts (Continued)

BRI E B R LIRS & 4969 Mt (4

e Examining the accuracy of costs incurred to date and
stage of completion by checking the certificates or
invoices issued by the subcontractors or suppliers, on a
sample basis; and

° Evaluating the reliability of the management’s forecast, on
a sample basis, by comparing the total actual contract
costs incurred at completion of completed projects
against the total budgeted contract costs.

s BEMERBESCEAMHERHANZSENLZEE
5ehk B Bl M PR ER EE E R B AR I ERE 1S 5 K2

s BBERERIBETHHEENERGAMARIER
MEB SRR BT EEERAN A St
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BINZBENR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

REEtEER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

PR E G IR R &4 B E R HEFFE

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables and contract assets
to the Group’s consolidated financial position and the
involvement of subjective judgment and management
estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses (‘ECL”)
of the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets at the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets amounted to MOP58,971,000 (net of
loss allowance of MOP7,278,000) and MOP117,289,000
(net of loss allowance of MOP18,397,000) respectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
provided impairment allowances of MOP4,265,000 and
MOP8,628,000 for trade receivables and contract assets,
respectively.

HPERDBWEZRRARENEERETESHESE
ZEE REARBREZRIARGNEEY SEEKR
BMBRANEZMEURN T E SEENRSHKRE
WEZERRREHNEERRESESRE (RREEEED)
PR R EBH B R EEE L5t o

ATETTEFE+"A=+—H> EEENEKREZER
R ENBEDF2A58,971,0008F9 75 (e EIEEHE
7,278,000)2F375) B 117,289,0008F3 70 (G0 kR 518 £
18,397,000 7t) B E_ZE_—_F+_H=+—HIE
FE BSEEMEREZRIEREHNEESTRIBE
Bt Bl 54,265,000/ F9 7T 528,628,000/ FI 7T ©

FARESTEIE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FZHENTRIEFABESSEHN G

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets included:

e Obtaining an understanding of how management
estimates the loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets;

e  Testing the integrity of information used by management
to develop the ECL assessment, including aging analysis
of trade receivables as at 31 December 2022, on a
sample basis, by comparing individual items in the
analysis with the relevant sales invoices;

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external valuation specialists appointed by
management of the Group;

RPIAREWE SRR ENEENRETENEFaE:

s THREEENMMGASEBRESRINGHNEENEGE
B

o BWBLLEOMPHEEEBLEEMHEEER HMEKR
ABEEFERREEGEENGMAENTELE
BER_ZE__F+__A=1+—HHNRKEIERIN
AR AT

e Mt ESEEEEEMEEMNBEIIIMGEMAIEE
1 ERKREEN



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

REEtEER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets (Continuea)

W E G IR R & A EER FEFFE (4)

As disclosed in Notes 16, 18 and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements, management of the Group estimates
the amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables and
contract assets based on the Group’s internal credit
ratings, historical credit loss experience, aging analysis,
repayment history and/or past due status of respective
trade receivables and contract assets. Estimated loss rates
are based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information.

MR B BRRI 16 18R27TATIHE > BEEE
BETEREBWEZRIAENEENTIEBNIEES
TR BREEEGBEKE REDIT - ERELR, @
HRER  REBAFEBREZRRRENEENEHR
HEEBESE LB ERXNDREBARRFHAN
ELEHRENRSL  TRATEEER LA

FARETEIE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FZHENTRIZFABES S EHN G A

Reviewing the valuation methodology and parameters in
the ECL assessment;

Challenging management’s basis and judgment in
determining loss allowance on trade receivables and
contract assets as at 31 December 2022, including their
identification of credit-impaired trade receivables and
contract assets and the basis of estimated loss rates
applied (with reference to historical default rates and
forward-looking information); and

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

ERBREEBENEFERNGED ER2H,;

AREBEETRERN _SE-_—_F#+_B=+—HKFE
WESERARGENEENFEES S B RIER A
g SEE#EERENEREZ R RENEE
DR B A Y s I8 R R K IR (B E B BE KA
BEHER) ; &

AR EMBRERNEARBNE ZRRRENEE
BTGB B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BINZBENR S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

ZHEMME st & M B RR KRN
BE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BINZBENR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

ZHEMFL B sHir & M IR RAEDN
BEw
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

Lai Hung Wai
Practising Certificate Number: PO6995

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023

ZHEMI B s & M IR IR AEDN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
trafEmaEMEETER

7177 N |
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiE—Z— &+ _HA=+—HItFE

2022 2021
== T4
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000
B 5 TR TEFT
Revenue W= 5 290,195 182,176
Cost of sales THE 2 (266,316) (160,701)
Gross profit EF 23,879 21,475
Other income HAug A 7 1,727 827
Impairment losses under expected TEfAEEEE (R E A
credit loss (“ECL”) model, B TR EBE
net of reversal N px#EEE] 8 (12,893) (7,713)
Administrative expenses THEHREX (18,207) (19,295)
Finance costs E={N 9 (258) (251)
Loss before taxation PRI RTS8 10 (5,752) (4,957)
Taxation 18 12 (1,193) (14)
Loss and total comprehensive AR AEMN
expense for the year attributable to FAREEREE
owners of the Company. Bz 48 % (6,945) (4,971)
Loss per share (MOP cents) S EE CRFIL)
Basic SIS 14 (0.35) (0.25)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
kR e BN R

At 31 December 2022 P —ZE— —F+_H=+—H

2022 2021
=g TET—4F
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000
FMIsE TR FEFI T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB R 15 37,175 39,264
Rental deposit feizs 16 127 119
Deferred tax asset IRIEFRIEE 17 - 256
37,302 39,639
Current assets MENE E
Trade and other receivables FE U & 5 BR 70 R E At
P RIE 16 60,046 54,862
Contract assets BREE 18 117,289 108,948
Pledged bank deposits EIRIFIRITER 19 20,192 1,493
Time deposit EHIFER 19 21,715 28,194
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEEY 19 20,368 40,275
239,610 233,772
Current liabilities Pt U=R
Trade and other payables FE B Z R R E M
FE{I 1B 20 41,747 29,450
Contract liabilities HBHER 18 142 773
Lease liabilities MHESRE 21 383 895
Taxation payable FEIRIE 2,973 3,393
Bank borrowing RITER 22 735 742
45,980 35,253
Net current assets MBEEFRE 193,630 198,519
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERTHER 230,932 238,158
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
tra MR

At 31 December 2022 R-&E— —F+_H=+—H

2022 2021
= BT
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000
FIsE T F BT

Non-current liabilities ERSEE
Deferred tax liability RERIBEEE 17 104 =
Lease liabilities MESRE 21 584 235
Bank borrowing RITER 22 6,293 7,027
6,981 7,262
223,951 230,896

Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital [N 23 20,630 20,630
Reserves i 203,321 210,266
223,951 230,896

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 175 were SF100E175EMNGEHHFREDN B - =F=
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 B+t HESZ=SSH ERE#ET|E W H 5

March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: EFEERREE
Mr. Wan Man Keung Mr. Woo Chu Fai
FR@AE R HE S
Non-executive Director Executive Director

FHITEFE HITEF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mAEmER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiE—Z— &+ _HA=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

YNNG
Share Share Legal Accumulated
capital premium reserve profits Total
B i EE RS RebiaEd az
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FEMT FRMT FEMT FEMT FRMT
(Notg)
()
At 1 January 2021 A_E_—F—F—H 20,630 84,509 13 130,715 235,867
Loss and total comprehensive FRBERZEY MR
expense for the year - - - (4,971) (4,971)
At 31 December 2021 RIZ2Z—F+ZA=1+—H 20,630 84,509 13 125,744 230,896
Loss and total comprehensive FREEREES HEE
expense for the year - - - (6,945) (6,945)
At 31 December 2022 A ZEZF+ZA=+—H 20,630 84,509 13 118,799 223,951
Note: Hiat -
In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau Special ~ 1R#E(#EE A R HEMERFIFRIITEE (TR ) 78 H)

Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China (‘Macau”), the
company registered in Macau is required to transfer part of its profits of each
accounting period of not less than 25% to legal reserve, until the amount
reaches half of its share capital.

F377% > FORPIEMA R B AR

gEHEIER AR

HAHR26%BIEEEHE  BEEFERBTRERH
IRABYF A IE
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EERBRAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mMARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiE—Z— &+ _HA=+—HItFE
2022 2021
—E-Z = S
MOP’000 MOP’000
TFRMT TBMT
Operating activities RERE
Loss before taxation PRI AT A58 (5,752) (4,957)
Adjustments for: U TR IEEHAEE
Depreciation of property, Y~ BB R R T E
plant and equipment 3,180 2,623
Loss on disposal of property, HEWZE  BE KK ENEE
plant and equipment 98 -
Interest income ) B WA (77) (198)
Impairment losses under ECL model, net of ~ FEERE BEEBET FRBIERIE
reversal NPR#EEE] 12,893 7,718
Finance costs =% 258 251
Operating cash flows before movements in SEETEHAIKERENE
working capital 10,600 5,432
Increase in trade and other receivables JFE U B2 553 AR = R EL A FE W AR IE 1 1D (9,457) (8,911)
Increase in contract assets/liabilities, net BHNEE/&AaEFEEM (17,600) (41,5898)
Increase in trade and other payables FE( & 5 BR R LA FE (T B
N 12,366 1,703
Cash used in operations KEPTAIRE (4,091) (43,364)
Income tax paid EIFRER (1,253) (257)
Net cash used in operating REEE PR AR 38
activities (5,344) (43,621)
Investing activities KREIEE
Placement of time deposit EERRER (34,372) (21,720)
Placement of pledged bank deposits EHEIRRRITER (18,699) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB BB KRR E (504) (24,559)
Withdrawal of time deposit IREVE HAERR 40,851 -
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME KEMRZEN
plant and equipment FRigs1E 204 -
Interest received BWHE 77 198
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B RITENR - 17,941
Repayment from a related company —RERAERQBER - 4
Net cash used in investing activities BB REFFARE S (12,443) (28,136)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 —F " " F+_"F=+—HILFE

2022 2021
= BT
MOP’000 MOP’000
T®FITT TBMT
Financing activities A EED
Repayments of principal on lease liabilities EEHEaBAE (1,052) (1,214)
Repayments of bank borrowing BIRIRITE™ (741) (483)
Repayment to a director of the Company BARAB] —HEEENR (533) (23)
Interest paid BT E (205) (145)
Repayments of interest on lease liabilities BEREEENE (53) (106)
Advance from a director of the Company KA —HEERR 464 357
New bank borrowing raised HIBIRITER - 8,252
Net cash (used in) from financing RLEEE) (FR ) FRSIREFRE
activities (2,120) 6,638
Net decrease in cash and cash HERIREEEBYRLFEE
equivalents (19,907) (65,119)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FVRERBFEEEY
beginning of the year 40,275 105,394
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRRERFEEEY
end of the year,
representing bank balances and cash BNIRTT4EER B IR & 20,368 40,275
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
hn o AT IR AR MY oE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiE—Z— &+ _HA=+—HItFE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

1. GENERAL INFORMATION — iR E R
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted KRB E—HF+—A/HTEHESH
company with limited liability in the Cayman lIslands under EREBEHASHEE AR EAF22EF MM IR
the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands on 6 BRAERRERAB HRMNKZZZ
November 2015 and its shares were listed on The Main Board EFE_RB+HBESAHERZFMARAE
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock (TR 3P y) £k £ (TE/)) o &RAF
Exchange”) on 14 February 2020 (the “Listing”). The addresses MrEEMIt R T EEEZMEBTIRERF
of the registered office and the principal place of business EREABER —f - ARABNBEEER
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information NEABERBEREE (RBREZHE))
section to the annual report. The immediate holding company ST AL —KFAAABISEM Enterprises
of the Company is SEM Enterprises Limited, which is a private Limited (AR RBIIFRITEEFRARILLE
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and i) o
controlled by Mr. Wan Man Keung, a non-executive director of
the Company.
The Company acts as an investment holding company and its ARNB A BREERABDRENB RS
subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of electrical and FERRMREEBNERHEE N RS T
mechanical engineering services in Macau and Hong Kong. 2R -
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Macau IRE M HRRT LR T (DR IT)) 251
Pataca (“MOP”), which is also the functional currency of the HINAKRRBZINEE
Company.
Certain comparative figures have been re-presented to conform ETHEREEBEEENEIURAFENZ
with current year's presentation. These reclassifications have no =R - ZEEMDEHAEBRNHEHER
effect on financial position, results for the year or cash flows of MFEXERREREN R E
the Group.

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO FERZE]BBRBIIREER

(TERMEHREER)

A E R G E M EIETT B BB R
HER

REFE HEESYFREE ~EEE
BEREANR_ZT__F—HF—HHZEH
MR AEEFEREAGEMNNE LG
BAg (TEBESEMAE)) BMILITE
ES]E B BREER

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the EARMBEHREED HSERNEM
Conceptual Framework E35E (B3] 4x)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent ERAPHBMEEN B —FHB=+
Concessions beyond F165% (B514) H 2z % ECOoVID-19
30 June 2021 BREZHEEE

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and

Equipment — Proceeds

B wiea)
F168% (2372)

W3~ P Ko skt — R
ERBERIBIPTEM

before Intended Use 5
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost EBg:H#R BEAHN-—EBITEH
of Fulfiling a Contract 375k (BE14) 2R
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to SRV BREEN - )N\FEZZZ
HKFRSs 2018-2020 (CREN) EERBUBRS

R Z FREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continuead)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October Insurance Contracts'
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants®

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single Transaction'

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

2.

FERGIE I SBRMBHREEN
(TEBMFHREER]) @

RS EERH EMNEETEBMFER
HEA )

RAEFERBEBMBRSEN ZETR
HAEERATFERBEFENMHRR
RERBR/ RZEREHHREPEHRRK
BUETAERTZE-

BB E R R ERBIFTREIETER
R TR S 2E

AERHRIEFEREBRME R REMD
NIRRT RAMERT BB B RS ER

ERMBEREENF R (B RRAK
BZE_ZE+ARE
ZZEZANBANBR
HEAFI7H (ETTH)

HFEMBREZAFI0NE REZAABEAFY

BAGEHER F285 BELEZENE
(GRS EHERIE
HEGERF165% ERMRHHNHEESRE
(1B5T )
BALER B BEMEARIIIER
(1BEI) BREEEES
(CEZZF) WA
EIEHIE
BRI MBI E
(CHEN &
BAGERFIRK BHEBREE
ERAMBREENER
BREHEMIES]
BB QAN R B AHNER
(1851 )
BAGERF125 HE—RGZEENEE
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R

T RZEBEC=ZF-B-HIAZEHRENEE
HARER
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HAR AR

RABEETE AN REETE B/
BREEINRARERRAIEHGESHHR
REERAEATE-
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if the market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment’, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “/mpairment of Assets”.

3. FEFETHR

HEVBRRERETEGSAMOGRR
MNEBYFREENRR - RRESH
BHREMS  HWARENGERAELEE
ERRFHNRE AABEHNKGERE
Rollbsh iR E M BRR OB FIES L
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ERERMEE -
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PHEBEHIRHEEREAINNE
1% M BRES A EAAEMEERN
ERTERRNGE -REABEENER/LF
B AEBEZREHE2EERGERRY
EENEREERMEBNEENERYE
o ZEROVBREPEHER HKE
AR RATEDRIEEEEE U TEE
BRON : BN EBMBREERB2RLURY
BEBZ I BEIRURN BURERZ
R RIEEBYBREENE165HE)
MNERRER 7 Uk HSER AT EZ 5
BEEETHRLUZEELIFATE HINE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z — —F+_HA=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 and 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted price (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset and liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

3.

FTESHHER @
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continueqd)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary (see Note 33) is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a services of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continueq)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue from electrical and mechanical engineering services
is described in the accounting policy on construction contracts
below.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continuea)

Revenue from electrical and mechanical engineering services
is recognised over time during the course of construction by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction at the
end of the reporting period. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the
Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation (i.e. contract costs incurred for work performed to
date) relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation (i.e. total estimated contract costs),
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services.

For construction contracts that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payment, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely amount, which
better predicts the amount of consideration contract only to
the extent that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

The contract assets on construction contracts represent the
Group’s right to consideration for work completed and not billed
as the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance
in satisfying the respective performance obligations. The
contract liabilities on construction contracts represent the
Group’s obligation to transfer electrical and mechanical
engineering services to customers for which the Group has
received consideration from the customers. A contract asset and
a contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted for
and presented on a net basis.

3.

FESHHER @

EREHWE @)

BORBH I RERFZ B @ENSREHR
EXMBENEEREZRBRETZS BB
meo R BN BN EREDREERES
E ERFAERNSHABETENER
(BIE2< ERIT ILIFFrERS N 54 A) 18
HRENEENRREARANKA B
StEAIMAE) REERI D REHIAEE
REBE R RBHEG ERBAIE

HRESTERE MENIR FREE
BRENEE) NERSHN AEEERR
FIRER MG HARUERBIRESRER It
R E e FRRME N 2 B e # A E AR YT B
ERRBEREMRR BRIt ARAREKR
AT EEREA N @ BTN G
BB - NEREAR AEEBMMEFR
ZEB BEEMANMGHTERERSRR
flzsth)  UEBRBRREBREAREFE
BRI RRNREHBENEES-

BEGUNENEEREAERBTETMM
REFNWTIFESAEBNEN BRzSE
FBCRRAEBREBETSBRBOEENR
REF-BREGVNEGNEAGBIELSERES
FRAZEFBRENREBIRERS AR
EEEERRREAEB-H-BEKRMAZ
BHNEERBNERDREREEARK

250
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

3. FEFHHR =
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continuead)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGHHEK @
(Continued)
Leases (Continued) HE @
The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEBEEAEEA @
Lease liabilities HEHIE
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises EHREHRREE AEBEESEZHE AL
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease NHNBEENRBERERDATEHEAG
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present AT EHEENRENRER NRTZRHE
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental EHRENASZHE KEEBFEREERA
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the 98 HAVIE EERAIZE

interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include: HEMREE !

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less . EHEMNR (BREELABEN
any lease incentives receivable; ) AR A ERE ;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a o HURAR—IEIEHMIAEERENR
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the ) 5t = B F B 4s B HARV IS B A
commencement date; X ¢

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under s AEEREFGREERFREHRENE
residual value guarantees; XA ;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is s BEEERNTHEE MAEESER
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and ETHEERE, &

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease e (MHEKRIFRMAEBRITERIEAE
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate BUEIERE B SE R IEFAE RIS o
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by EAF#W HEfE  HEaEEEF B MAE

interest accretion and lease payments. B FUEITRE -
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modlifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the assets belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continuead)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-generating
units, with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@)

cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no longer
meeting the definition of cash; and

cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as short-term
borrowings in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest incorme

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (‘ECL") model on financial assets and other items
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade receivables, contract assets, deposits, other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, time deposit and bank balances). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. For all other financial instruments, the
Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

3. FEFHHE @

£RMTHE®

TREE @
EMEERE (@)

U

R BBAIE N ()
PG EHARREAIRENE U
AR RIS S

e TMIAINS WA HAARBEE
FRHRBEREANBCHTRER L
RERBIE

s EERABNIIBHHERHIRE
KRB AIMEERE - BBARE
BENRAEREREE;

s XB - UBULEBERBERINE

HRARBEEBEFABTEER
BBIBESD 5

s BEHAEEBEXEERCDARBRL
REABE &

e BBANER BEAKRMIRE
EREXFERHREAFFE
O ERNEFABRTEERSN
BETIRIBIEAR o

Tm LIS E RS RN RERRER
EGMNRIRERBIBI0RRM AEE
Bk B ) REERDLORE R MEE M > BRIE
FERECGERARERENEMNERL
MBI IR B 55 E Bl o

Annual Report ZF£E#R & 2022 125



126

SEM Holdings Limited JE3Z3EiE G RA T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2':' AN
17 [ |

AT R R B sE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —ZF— —F+—_H=—+—HIIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has
a low risk of default; (i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and (i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice when
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, the loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments that are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instruments.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank borrowing are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

3.

FTESHHER @

£RMTHE®

AR 1EFEST
FERETEERSRAENGREN 2
R ISR SRBE

PR L PSR IR I R A T BRI S R E E
EERBEABEUARBRAEBZMZEN
ERAN B m S o

BEEAEENEBEEET  RERIEHR
B REBEA KIS ESREE K IERES
NEMEENREERSZ N RESHAE
Z BB ERGEEm PR -

1A
RIAE B HIFE (AR TR B E AR TR AV ABAD

BN IREER EABRRET G HE B
1S L th £F BZ P& 5R 15 B9 WA B BT 40 3R B9 B s
DU ARRIRIPIINABIRE » FERIR ST
SR e iRm R E M2 E W &P IR S B R
MATBIETE - cEENHREERRE
BREMHREFEHLARLEFENRES
Bo

BEMBUEEREERBEMBEMN
ARE B 2 5t EIEER T E I P 62 B R ABFE AR
BEZ BV E R ERRES BERBESR—
RRTWLPR A FEERIN & 5 ME Z BR M M 50 » M AR AE
MIAE ER — KRB EA BRI A 5] #
MR E R EEE S G A R R
MERFMEEZEETER - MR —BEXZH
HEHREH S UINRE L D E A
BERBEIBNERZERIZERR
MaEf A EgstaEr ARl ZE
EERBEEERER-

Annual Report ZF£E#R & 2022 129



130

SEM Holdings Limited JE3Z3EiE G RA T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tra MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B E — &~ —F+_ B=1+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investment in a subsidiary, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investment are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in term of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, as recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the
“MPF Schemes”) in Hong Kong and the Social Security
Fund Contribution in Macau are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages, salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.

Electrical and mechanical engineering services
contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimated total contract
costs and margins to complete the satisfaction of these services
and the margin of each project as the contract progresses.
Budgeted costs and margins are prepared by management of
the Group on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the subcontractors or suppliers involved and the experience
of management of the Group. In order to keep the budget
accurate and up-to-date, management of the Group conducts
periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred. Such
significant estimate may have impact on the margins recognised
in each period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continueq)

Electrical and mechanical engineering services
contracts (Continuea)

For construction contracts that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payment, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely amount, which
better predicts the amount of consideration contract only to
the extent that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

Recognised amounts of revenue of MOP290,195,000 (2021:
MOP182,176,000) from electrical and mechanical engineering
services contracts reflect the management’s best estimate of
each contract’s outcome and stage of completion, which are
determined on the basis of a number of estimates. This includes
the assessment of the margins of on-going electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts. For more complex
contracts in particular, costs to complete and margins are
subject to significant estimation uncertainty, the actual outcomes
in terms of total cost may be higher or lower than estimated at
the end of each reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and margins recognised in future years and adjustment to the
amounts recorded to date.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Recognition of ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets have been assessed
individually. The Group applies internal credit rating for its
customers. The amounts are assessed individually by reference
to historical credit loss experience, aging analysis, repayment
history and/or current past due status of the debtor. ECL
estimates also consider the reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. At every reporting date, the potential increase in credit
risk, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.
The ECL recognition has considered the risk surrounding the
COVID-19 pandemic and is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL of the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in Note 27.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2021, a deferred tax asset of Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”) 336,000 (equivalent to approximately
MOP347,000) (2022: nil) in relation to unused tax losses for
an operating subsidiary in Hong Kong has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31
December 2022, no deferred tax asset has been recognised on
the tax losses arising in Macau of approximately MOP1,249,000
(2021: nil) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future, which is a key source of estimation
uncertainty especially the uncertainty on how the COVID-19
pandemic may progress and evolve. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are less or more than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances which result in revision
of future taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal
or further recognition takes place.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continueq)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the assets belong, including allocation
of corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable amount
is determined at the smallest group of cash generating units,
for which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) subject
to impairment assessment were MOP34,976,000 (2021:
MOP1,724,000), after taking into account the impairment losses
of nil (2021: nil).
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5. REVENUE 5. k&
2022 2021
—E-— BT
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FBEFT
Provision of electrical and mechanical TR E ) K B T2 AR 75
engineering services recognised over time 48 B 5 e 57 290,195 182,176

The customers of the Group are mainly main contractors and
subcontractors in Macau and Hong Kong. Contracts with the
Group’s customers are mainly fixed-price contracts, except for
the variation orders.

FEBNERITEDRFAREBNRERE
AhkOEE RAEEEFNENEERE
EBRHNEGH EIREBERI) -

Disaggregation of revenue Yz 48
2022 2021
—E-C BT
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T Rl bav

By property type Y EERE 5
Hotels and casinos EE S YR 4415 28,186 29,550
Residential properties FEYE 1,591 10,542
Commercial properties [EEXYES 11,612 66,259
Public properties N7/ ES 247,431 74,908
Others Hith 1,375 917
290,195 182,176
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. AHEH

The Group is engaged in a single operating segment focusing on
the provision of electrical and mechanical engineering services.
This operating segment has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports that are regularly reviewed by the
directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
makers, for the purpose of result allocation and performance
assessment. Therefore, no further analysis of segment
information is presented.

FEBREFE—KENE FXNIREHEES
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PAEFR @

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Macau and Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and information
about its non-current assets by geographical location of the
customers and the assets, respectively, are detailed below:

EER

FEBNKESEUIORFIRER
AEBERBIIEELHNBRAUREER K
BEEMBUEIONIERBEEER Z5F
BOREIWMT

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIIEBEREIKRA ERBEE
Year ended 31 December At 31 December
HE+_HA=1+—HIEFE w+=—B=+—8
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C BT —E-C B &
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FiEM T TR BT TEMT
Macau P 115,161 103,912 34,976 37,584
Hong Kong 5% 175,034 78,264 2,326 1,799
290,195 182,176 37,302 39,383
Note: ~ Non-current assets excluded deferred tax asset. Kzt FERBBEEFCERERIESE-

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total

EREXERRNEH

REMAERBERZI0ONA ENERRE

revenue of the Group during the year are as follows: AW
2022 2021
o= -z
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR
Customer A ZEA 73,147 126,507
Customer B =FAB 163,713 37,953
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7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hfthg A

2022 2021
—E-C =B —F
MOP’000 MOP’000
BT TIPS
Interest income FE WA 77 198
Government grants (Note i) B #ERL (B732) 1,329 -
Others (Note i) Hth (Bt aEi) 321 629
1,727 827

Notes: Viora

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
government grants of MOP1,329,000 (2021: nil) in respect of
COVID-19-related subsidies related to Employment Support
Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group has fulfiled all conditions
attached to the grants.

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has made
sales of materials amounting to MOP36,000 (2021: nil) to Shun
Tat M&E Equipment Limited (“Shun Tat”), of which Mr. Wan Man
Keung, a non-executive director of the Company, has significant
influence over this company.

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER ECL

BHE_ZE__F+"_HB=+—HIEFEE &
£ BEFLCOVID-1948 R Bh FE 58 & B BUT 12
H B9 2 5t 2 ABRA BT ARk 1,329,00038
FIE (T2 —F D) A RBEERA K
EEC MMM ERFTA R o

BHE_ZE__F+"_HBA=+—HIEFEE &
EEREEREREBRAR (EE) HE
#MEI36,0000P T (CBE-—F : F) »HA
RRB R TEETFREAREEHZATR
BAFE

FRHAE B G EREI TRIERS

MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL 18 > 0BR[]
2022 2021
= BT —F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEMTT TEPITT
Impairment losses, net of reversal, G RIEER R R ER TS
recognised on: fOpR#EEE]
— trade receivables (Note 16) — BB SR (BaE16) 4,265 1,698
— contract assets (Note 18) —GNEE WiE18) 8,628 6,015

12,893 7,713
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BB
2022 2021
—ECHF BT
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FEFT
Interest on bank borrowing IRITRERFE 205 145
Interest on lease liabilities HESGHE 53 106
258 251
10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRI ATESIE
2022 2021
—EHF BT —F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRt TP T
Loss before taxation has been PRI A ES B E R bR
arrived at after charging: THEIERER
Directors’ remuneration E=e 2,895 2,866
Other staff costs HME T A
— salaries and other allowance — ¥ R EMERL 22,492 14,382
— retirement benefit scheme contributions ~ — B IRAEF 5T 2l {3k 582 398
Total staff costs BT R A#R%E 25,969 17,646
Less: staff costs included in cost of sales & : 5t ASHE AR B LA (16,223) (7,666)
9,746 9,980
Auditors’ remuneration Z M & 1,020 980
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BERREITE
equipment 3,180 2,623
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BEMRRENESR
equipment 98 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiE—Z— &+ _HA=+—HItFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND MN.EE - FETHAERESHE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments (a) EFERFETHASME
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors RIFEEA MR REER BRI
and chief executive of the Company disclosed pursuant to WEARBAEERFETHRAEEN
the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies HETHBNEEBEOT -

Ordinance, are as follows:

Salaries Retirement
and other  benefit scheme
Fees allowance contributions Total
ek ROKER
s Hithi2Rh SHEI R ek
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMT FRMT FRMT FRMT
Year ended BE-Z-—
31 December 2022 +ZB=1+—HLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Note j) B LE (1732) - 840 19 859
Mr. Wun Chi Wai SEEE - 554 19 573
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan ASELE - 514 19 533
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRBELE 186 - - 186
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis FIRZE XA 186 - - 186
Independent non-executive B IR ITEE
directors
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer ~ 2IiRE L4 186 - - 186
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, L&+ B8RS
BBS 186 - - 186
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas 18 K384 186 - - 186

Total emoluments it 930 1,908 57 2,895




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND M.EF - FETHRAEREESME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continueq) (4
(a) Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments (a) EFERFETHAEME @
(Continued)
Salaries Retirement
and other benefit scheme
Fees allowance contributions Total
&R BIRER
ik Hth2ag BE G g
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FREMT F2MT FREMT FREMT
Year ended HE_Z—-_-&
31 December 2021 +-A=1+—HLEE
Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Note j) B LA (1732) - 798 19 817
Mr. Wun Chi Wai SEREE - 554 19 573
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan ASELE - 527 19 546
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRBLE 186 = = 186
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis  SFRZE XA 186 - - 186

Independent non-executive B IEHITEE

directors
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer ~ Z|iAE k4% 186 = = 186
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, ~ SEfh¥ 8+ BBS

BBS 186 - - 186
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas 18 K384 186 - - 186
Total emoluments &4z 930 1,879 57 2,866

Notes: izt -

)  Mr. Woo Chu Fai acts as the chief executive of the Company ) PEEREEEEARATDFETEHAE
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for BEEENMEaEEEAEET
services rendered by him as the chief executive. BABTiRERFEHE & o

(i)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were iy MUEHRTESEMEDAEEESELRR
for their services in connection with the management of the Bl R A& B EFEFTiE HeYAR S mE
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive Hod EIERITEESMEH IR EHE
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services ERAB 2 EEPTIR BRI MIESL ©

as directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE T HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F— —F+_H=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND MN.ES - FETHAEREEMNSE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals include one (2021: three)
director of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022, details of whose emoluments are included above.
Details of the emoluments of the remaining highest paid
individuals were as follows:

(b) EEM=E

RB8E—_T__F+-_RB=+—HIt
FE - IRRsSFMALEEISR CE
T—HF I ZR)ARAER REME
SBEHIN EX 8RN RS F A BB
EFBWT

2022 2021
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR F BT

Employees (==
— salaries and other allowance — ¥ S EAMERL 3,799 1,144
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RBREH 52 Tx 73 36
3,872 1,180

The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were within
the following bands:

LitE SR SRR AT EE

2022 2021

—ECHE BT

Number of Number of

employees employees

EEAH BEAH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,00078 75 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 & 1,500,00078 7T 1 -
4 2

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company nor the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors of the Company waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during both years.

AEBBEQLAATEFNALERRDS
FAL (BREFKES MHEM
MEERMATEBHNIMARNE
B FRBERME -MEARRNESEN
MEFERRARBRETAIE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

12. TAXATION 12. IR1E

2022 2021
T = S
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEMT TEM T

Macau Complementary Tax TR TEIR
Current tax BNHAR IR - 1,340
Overprovision in prior years B FEBERERE (87) (1,070)

Hong Kong Profits Tax BHEFER
Current Tax BPRRFR IR 920 -
Deferred taxation (Note 17) IRIERRIE (HfaE17) 360 (256)
1,193 14

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2021: 12%) of
the estimated assessable profits exceeding MOP600,000 for the
year.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
assessable profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the
qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong had been made as the
subsidiary in Hong Kong did not have any assessable profits for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

PGPS 2 P SR 2B 8.600,00012 P 7T
B 5 &t B SR AR R 012% (S = — £ -
12%) 58 o

REEBMNERZMEFFESREEE 5
EREEBRNE2B BB T T EEH R
#8.25%MMEHR > MBBE2E EEBTH
Bl SHEEF 16 6% IREH IR - A5
MARBFEREFEERNERBREND
ST g 7 A 4 48 121 6.5% BV B — TR B Aan AR
He-Ft cEREEERNE2AEET
5t FEERIR AT 128.26% M B B2 H B A 7T
fh st FERIER BIIZ16.5%HN MK ENE
BMEH

AEBWNBARNRBE_T_—F+_A1

=+—HLEFETHREMERRER >
BREEBUREAEFLEE
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144 SEM Holdings Limited JE3Z3EiE G RA T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE T HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T~ —F+_HA=+—HIFE

12. TAXATION (Continued)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

12. IRI18 @

ERGEEREMEERDmRPFERNR
TRERRI AR IRBVE AR T ¢

other comprehensive income as follows:

2022 2021

= T4

MOP’000 MOP’000

TEFTT TEFT

Loss before taxation PRI AR 1B (5,752) (4,957)
Tax at Macau Complementary Tax rate AP AR TE12%ET 8

of 12% (2021: 12%) HIRIE (CEZ—%F 1 12%) (690) (595)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR AWM B E
tax purpose 1,890 1,688
Tax effect of income not taxable for EEFRBMANRT L E

tax purpose (166) @)
Utilisation of tax loss previously Az i R SRR IE RS 18

not recognised (32) —

Income tax at concessionary rate REEREXSENIER (170) =

Tax effect of tax loss not recognised REERNRIBEENR T2 150 =

Special complementary tax incentive BRI REER - (72)

Overprovision in prior years B FEEREG (87) (1,070)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FE M B A & A = BB a8

operating in other jurisdiction NEINRRERERN L 297 55

Others HAth 1 10

Taxation for the year FRNRIE 1,193 14

13. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting

period (2021: nil).

13. iR &

(CE—%F:

P
4iE) o
AR

REE-F-F+-A=t+—HLEE
i 04 A F) BB SR AR RS

BEREARURTESRZRNEARE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F — —F+_H=+—HIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. S igE518

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the BREARGELEUTEESE .
following data:

2022 2021
St : 3 T4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEMTT TEPIT
Loss E518
Loss for the year FENEE (6,945) (4,971)
2022 2021
T T4
Number of Number of
shares shares
i &8 KineE
’000 ‘000
Thg A&
Weighted average number of shares B 17 I35 2
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 48 A N #3924 2,000,000 2,000,000
No diluted loss per share for both years are presented as there TEZFMEFENSRKREEEE RAMm
are no potential ordinary shares in issue during both years. BEERNTEBEECETEZER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tra MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F— —F+_H=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % B E K% E
Owned Leased Leasehold Furniture Motor
property properties improvements and fixtures  Equipment vehicles Total
BENE HENE HENERE GRREE R AE g

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TEAT  T#Efz  TEAR TRz TEMR TEAT  TEAR

cosT o

At 1 January 2021 RZE-—-&-F—H 14,005 7,162 1,209 120 1,333 320 24,149
Additions HE 19,567 1506 4,022 - 970 - 26,065
At 31 December 2021 RZZ_—F+-B=1+-H 33,572 8,668 5,231 120 2,303 320 50,214
Additions HE - 889 93 - 411 - 1,393
Disposal e - - - - (464) - (464)
At 31 December 2022 RIZZZE+ZB=1-H 33,572 9,557 5,324 120 2,250 320 51,143
DEPRECIATION &

At 1 January 2021 RZE-—&-F—H 653 6,298 399 119 665 193 8,327
Provided for the year EREE 574 1,214 474 1 297 63 2,623
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—&+"A=1+—-H 1,221 7,512 873 120 962 256 10,950
Provided for the year R 672 1,054 1,043 - 347 64 3,180
Eliminated on disposal HE i - - - - (162) - (162)
At 31 December 2022 RIZZZF+-B=1+-H 1,809 8,566 1,916 120 1,147 320 13,968

CARRYING VALUES REfE

At 31 December 2022 RZE-Z#+-"F=+—H 31,673 991 3,408 - 1,103 - 37,175
At 31 December 2021 R_E_-&+"A=+-H 32,345 1,156 4,358 - 1,341 64 39,264
The above items of property, plant and equipment are L E -BERRENIEBRBEEG LR

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per DUF &I EE .

annum:

Owned property 2% BEY=*= 2%

Leased properties The shorter of its estimated HEYZE EhstERASHMNEE
useful life and the lease term HAmE PR E

Leasehold improvements The shorter of its estimated HEYEEE HBsHERSaNEE
useful life and the lease term HAmE PR iAEE

Furniture and fixtures 20% RmEE 20%

Equipment 20% B 20%

Motor vehicles 20% AE 20%

The Group has pledged the owned property with carrying AEBEIRFEREEA17,045,00008F 75

amount of MOP17,045,000 (2021: MOP17,398,000) to secure —=E " —%:17,398,000/297T) WEA

the bank borrowing (see Note 22) granted to the Group. MEUERBDAEBRHPIRITEDR (R

£+02) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BERRZE @

(Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Right-of-use assets (included in the leased properties in the
property, plant and equipment)

FEBRERS—ZEEA

ERREE GtAYE BEAKRFETHHE
E%)

2022 2021
T = S
MOP’000 MOP’000
TFEMT TEMT

Expense relating to short-term leases with SRR 1218 B AAERB
lease terms end within 12 months RHITEERRANMEY 670 394
Total cash outflow for leases HERERHAREE 1,775 1,714

For both years, the Group leases various offices, staff quarters
and warehouses for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed terms of 1 to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
properties. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the portfolio of
short-term lease is similar to the portfolio of short-term lease to
which the short-term lease expense disclosed as above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, carrying amounts of lease liabilities of
MOP967,000 are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of MOP991,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: lease
liabilities of MOP1,130,000 and related right-of-use assets of
MOP1,156,000). The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

KWMEFE ~EEREEEREZARA
E-BIEEKREE-HEGMNIL1EIF
BYEEHAIR - A HRTS AR 8 R B 6 L1753
BE BT R FER KRR - R EERAR
MG PSS R R AR K » AEERA S
#IBYTE 1 B E P] SR B BIT S AIRIHAR o

AEBERTUERYERG R -2 "
FRZBZ-F+-A=+—QH EHEE
A& B SCPRI BE AU AE HATE B B SZ Y RE HA
HEHEHEE-

B1TH B A BRI PR HI 203249

oy - R E-__—_&F+-_B=+—H">
967,000E2f9 Il EaBIRmEERR
AR EREE EA991,0008F T (T
—_—FHE&EA1,130,00008 Tt B8
RERE B E A1,156,00008FF7T) © kR H
AAFENHEESETMWEFRERMI
Bzl EmNERRZE - HEEERARM
BT EERe
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148 SEM Holdings Limited JE3Z3EiE G RA T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE T HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F— —F+_H=+—HIFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. B 5 R HthFEUFRIE

2022 2021

—E-Z BT

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR FEFT

Trade receivables JFE IR B Z BR =X 66,249 54,648
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (7,278) (3,013)
58,971 51,635

Deposits and prepayments & M TENFIE 1,202 2,011
Other receivables HhEWRIE - 1,335
60,173 54,981

Presented as: EX P

Non-current JERE 127 119
Current e 60,046 54,862
60,173 54,981

At 1 January 2021, trade receivables amounted to
MOP43,454,000.

At 31 December 2022, trade receivables amounted to
MOP58,971,000 (2021: MOP51,635,000) (net of loss allowance
of MOP7,278,000 (2021: MOP3,013,000)). The Group usually
allows a credit period of 30 to 60 days to its customers.
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses based on the invoice dates at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

A _E_—F—HF—H EBWREZEDRA
43,454,000 P97

N _&F+_HA=+—H EIKE
SRR A58,971,00008F T (ZEE = —
£ 1 51,685,000;8F970) (0 Bk &5 18 & 1K
7,278,000/ 7t (Z& ——% : 3,013,000/
Fi7T)) - AEBEEE AR H AHI30H £60
BWNEER RERER EREZIRN
B EEBREER) REE DN IZEZH
HAZHF :

2022 2021

== BT —F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR T TRFITT

Within 30 days 30H™A 16,283 18,365
31 to 60 days 31E60H 1,542 8,733
61 to 90 days 61ZE90H 714 16
Over 90 days 84890 H 40,432 24,521

58,971 51,635




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES coniinveg  16. B 5 R EthEURTRIE @

Included in the trade receivables are debtors with a carrying
amount of MOP42,688,000 (2021: MOP33,270,000) at 31
December 2022, which are past due. Out of the past due
balances, MOP31,690,000 (2021: MOP24,518,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
at 31 December 2022 by considering the continuous business
relationship and historical repayments from these customers.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances or
charge any interest thereon.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECL on
all trade receivables and contract assets. Trade receivables and
contract assets have been assessed for ECL individually.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
customers from the date credit was initially granted up to
the end of the reporting period. The majority of the Group’s
trade receivables that are past due but not impaired are from
customers with good credit quality with reference to respective
settlement history and forward-looking information and the
Group considers any change in the expected life of the trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period.

Details of impairment assessment on trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits are set out in Note 27.

A _H+_RB=+—H EKB5EK
M EIE BRI AR {8 A 42,688,000:2 F9 7T

ZZ T —4 133,270,000} 9 75) BIFE UL
FUE o PR R4S R 31,690,00058 FF 75 (—
LT~ —4F ! 24,518,000;2F9 ) B #EHA90K
FU L RERIHAZERT R NIFEERRE
GBRZETPNBEEER N_E -
T+ B =+—HAWREEN - AEE I &
MZEERTE T AKE R IEWERD
ERAE o

AEBRBBIETEMAE BUE SRR
REHNEES RBHMEERRE -BKEZK
MREHNEECHEREEBERERET G

REZEATERZA AEE ST LEE
ERNEEERTEEERNEEMRE I
EERWEZRINETKOIER  xEEE
EREPHNEEERBEEERVREAH
EESRSHRNETNES sEBAHE
RBRENEKREZERRAMOKRBEEE
EREFNEF U 2EXENEEEL KA
EEER BEAREERSREAREEEUY
B2 R TRAF S -

BERAEWE 7 IR HBWGRIE R R TR
BTG5 B E M sE27 ©
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SEM Holdings Limited JE3Z3EiE G RA T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tra MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z — —F+_HA=—+—HIEFE

17.

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities

17. IRIEFRIT

BINESVBRRKRAER & TIEIERE
BERBEERH UTRRUBREAR

have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax HIRERIBAARRETHN DT
balances for financial reporting purposes:
At 31 December
®+-A=+-AH
2022 2021
B F —E 5
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEFIT TRFITT
Deferred tax assets FIETRIBE B - 256
Deferred tax liabilities FIERMIAEE (104) -
(104) 256
The followings are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) UTARAEERZAIFEFENERNEE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior REMBEEE (BFE KEEE) !
years:
Accelerated tax Unutilised
depreciation  ECL provision tax loss Total
BHES REAH
IR ETE ERERE REHR Bt
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FEMT FRMT TR TR
At 1 January 2021 RZ2-—4%—HA—H - - - -
(Charged) credited to profit % GOBR) st A
or loss (95) 4 347 256
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ—H+"A=+—H (95) 4 347 256
Charged to profit or loss Riaamiibk (13) - (347) (360)
At 31 December 2022 RIZ2HF+-A=+—"H (108) 4 - (104)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses arising in Macau of approximately MOP1,249,000 (2021:
nil) available for offset against future profits that will expire within
the next 3 years. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit
streams.

At at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$3,060,000 (equivalent
to approximately MOP3,156,000) (2022: nil) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of tax losses of approximately HK$3,060,000
(equivalent to approximately MOP3,156,000) (2022: nil) of such
losses. The losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

FREREHAR - AN EE B $R 15 ﬁ\/rﬁﬁéiaﬁﬂ%%ﬂ
M IBEEE41,249,0008F ¢ (Z2 =
£ B) I N kR = RN IJHHE%E
AFEA o AR R AE A FR A BT A A AL
T E IR BB A EERIEE E o

AT —F+-_H=+—H'AEEEE
REAEENARSHRIBEIEAI3,060,000
Bt (B E7493,156,0008F37T) (— =——
== @Tﬁi\}fﬁfaﬂ%;ﬁ/ A o /‘T*)LLD/(—IEE
BRI IEE18493,060, ooofﬁm (FBE R 7
3,156,0002F97T) (ZF = | =) IR
IEFRTEE FE o azfﬂéﬁ}a‘lmlﬁﬂﬁnu%%o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 18. BN BEEREGHNAR

LIABILITIES
2022 2021
T T4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEFTT TR
Contract assets from provision of RERMHEETRRREN
electrical and mechanical engineering GHEE
services
— Unbilled revenue —RFEARUA 92,114 94,040
— Retention money —1RxEE 43,572 24,677
135,686 118,717
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EERIERE (18,397) (9,769)
117,289 108,948
Contract liabilities eHaRE
Provision of electrical and mechanical TREE I R T2 RS
engineering services 142 773
Movement in contract assets (net of loss allowance): BHEEED (OREEEE):
2022 2021
o= -z
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFITT TBMT
At the beginning of the year REH) 108,948 77,214
Revenue recognised during the year FRER W = 289,422 177,564
Progress billing during the year FEE IR (272,453) (139,815)
Impairment of contract assets (Note 8) SBREERE (I5E8) (8,628) (6,015)
At the end of the year AR 117,289 108,948

A _E_—F—B—H alNEERGHNE
B9 B 277,214,000/ F9 7t K24,612,0008
Pz o

At 1 January 2021, contract assets and contract liabilities
amounted to MOP77,214,000 and MOP4,612,000 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tra MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —ZF— —F+—_H=—+—HIIFE

18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 18. BN BERENEEw

LIABILITIES (Continued)

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditional on quantity surveyors’ or customers’
inspection. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets recognised are as follows:

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period with
reference to surveys of work performed to date. The Group
typically transfers the contract assets to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

The Group also typically agrees to a defect liability period of
1 to 2 years from the date of the practical completion of the
construction for 5% to 10% of the contract sum. This amount
of retention money is included in contract assets until the end
of the defect liability period as the Group’s entitlement to this
final payment is conditional on completion of defect liability
period. The defect liability period serves as an assurance that
the construction services performed comply with agreed-
upon specifications and such assurance cannot be purchased
separately. The Group classifies these contract assets as
current because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle.

GRNEETEZRASEE B IE T MR
MBI TRRWE A ER R B R B arE
MIBUTHAEMIERNERSEG -5
NEERBIRABREKESBKES

BRRR o

T EEMRGNEESRNEZE M MIER
LI

FEBNRESHNEEESEZLZS AL
ETHNTIRERAENBERABRRBERIMR
BYISTRE 8 - EREF A BRI AEE
BEROGHNEEBBERKE S RN

AEEBETRAEEERERERTAHRE
SHEE2FREGNERAE%E10% HHY
BREETH RRETEETASTHEE
EERBESERERD L B EEIE
Z AR R R TH LUER G B EHA R4

miFt - REEERARBERLEITRE
RENFREREBREFTEBEE £ &
BERzEENEEDEANE AREEE
BRI EREEBHRELIE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE — &~ _F+_ B=1+—HIFE

18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 18. BB ERENEEw

LIABILITIES (Continued)

Retention money is unsecured, interest-free and recoverable at
the end of the defect liability period of 1 to 2 years from the date
of the completion of respective projects.

The amount of receipt in advance from a customer is netted
off against retention money on a particular contract basis and
presented as contract liabilities. For the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period, MOP773,000 (2021:
MOP4,612,000) recognised as revenue in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The increase of contract assets as at 31 December 2022 is
the result of the increase in completion of certain significant
contracts work of electrical and mechanical engineering
services.

The decrease of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2022 is
the result of decrease in receipt in advance from the customers
from certain projects.

Details of impairment assessment on contract assets are set out
in Note 27.

RETAELF LB~ LUIRN AR S EH
(BREB MR Z B E2F) BEREA
BEEID

HERELARERBEEAGNEENGRES
T2 AGHEE MR RSHINENE
BEms 8E_E-_—_F#+=-B=+—H1t
FEREZARERUWEE773,0002F T (Z
T —4F : 4,612,000/2F97T) ©

BHNEER_Z2__F+-A=+—H%
MBERETFENREMIERFHEKR
BNIETIHEEMPA -

aNaER 2 "“F#+"A=+—HR
DIhERBREREERETRERIERD
FfrEg e

BRGNEENREGF BN 27
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19. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/TIME 19. BiEIRERITEREHER HE

DEPOSIT/CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2022 are pledged
to secure the performance bonds (see Note 29) granted to the
Group, which carry interest at prevailing market rate ranging
from 0.025% to 0.05% (2021: 1.00%) per annum.

Time deposit represents a bank deposit with original maturity
date of over three months and the balance as at 31 December
2022 carried a fixed interest rate ranging from 0.025% to 3.60%
(2021: ranging from 0.03% to 0.65%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents comprise
of cash held and short term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less which carry interest at prevailing
market rate ranging from 0.001% to 0.05% (2021: 0.001%) per
annum.

Details of impairment assessment on pledged bank deposits,
time deposit and bank balances are set out in Note 27.

RREEEY

AT T EFE+ " A =+—HHEIKHIE
TEAEERBEUARERERNBLARE
(RHIsE29) (FIE(R > BIRITHIBHAIESE
0.025%%0.05% (ZZ——% : 1.00%) 5t
Bo

EHEHIEREBEBE =EENIERTHE
AER_E__F+_A=+—HE8E®
B E A ZR0.025%E3.60% (ZE_-—4F :
0.03%%E0.65%) 5t ERAEER©

R-ZE_—_F+_B=+—H ' RBERR
SEBYBENREPEAE=ZEAFLUT
HFFRSREHIETER RBTHES
FEFZENF0.001%=E0.05% (ZE_—F :
0.001%) 5t 8

BB IRIRRITER  EHERURIRITAS
BRBVRUE ST IR R MY 5E27 o

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. FEfH B ZERFR KR H Mt FE (7R I8

2022 2021

T T4

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRFTT TBMT

Trade payables (note a) FE B ZR™ (Hata) 13,949 20,539

Retention payables FENREE 10,490 5,353

Accrued expenses FESTRXZ 16,945 3,126
Amount due to a director of the Company BN AT —REEHIE

(note b) (Htatb) 288 357

Other payables HAh (I 75 75

41,747 29,450
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continueo)

(@) Trade payables

At 1 January 2021, trade payables amounted to
MOP21,605,000. The credit period of trade payables is
ranging from 30 to 90 days. The following is an aging
analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice date at

20. FEfY & 5 ARk R Hth FE 7R IE

&

(a)

&3 & 5 BRTR
Amm——E—g—

B B8 ZRMR

#521,605,000/82 97T © FET B Z RN
EENFI0EI0H - REIREHR
FE(T B 57 AR IER B D AT Th 2 3 = H H

the end of the reporting period: S5 -
2022 2021
—E-—fF -
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEFTT TEMT
Within 30 days 30HA 4,505 13,796
31 to 60 days 31Z260H 928 2,879
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,760 512
Over 90 days B0 H 6,756 3,352
13,949 20,539

At 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
payables is a related company with carrying amount of
MOP4,000 (2022: nil) due to Shun Tat.

(b) Amount due to a director of the Company

(b)

N B —F+_HA=+—H>K&EH
HNENEZERROE—HBRABEATE
T IB%ZE B R IE B ER B (8 %A 4,00008 F9 75

(CB"HF:B)e

BEEAB—HEENIEA

2022 2021

—E-C —E-—F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR FEFT

Mr. Woo Chu Fai PAEIE ST 288 357
The amount is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free ZHEAIEESHE - EBIEHR - RERK

and repayable on demand. BIREREERE
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21. LEASE LIABILITIES 1. fHE&E
2022 2021
—ECH —E2-—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEFITT TEMT
Lease liabilities payable: FETRE &S !
Within one year K—FR 383 895
Within a period of more than one year R—EL FBRBEmREN
but not more than two years A 584 235
967 1,130
Less: Amount due for settlement with B AMERESaE 2R+ 2@
12 months shown under current BARIHRERE 2B
liabilities (383) (895)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months ~ ZfEIEFRENEEZ R+ @S
under non-current liabilities BEREE 2B 584 235
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to BE_T__&+ :E A= ‘f; - E't flaf: % &
A = 7 He i B S | 2R
lease liabilities is 5.00% (2021: 5.00%) per annum for the year ARHESRENMEFIREEENES

5 —m— o
ended 31 December 2022. SR R S
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22. BANK BORROWING 22, R1TfEX
2022 2021
T = S
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T TEPIT
Secured bank borrowing BIRIRIRITER 7,028 7,769
The carrying amount of the above borrowing is _E #iLf& =R AYER E B
repayable (based on scheduled repayment (RIEEER B ZEPTEETE
dates set out in the loan agreement): EXHER)
Within one year —FRN 735 742
Within a period of more than one year but not BB —EEBRBBEME
exceeding two years 770 763
Within a period of more than two years but 8B M FE BB A F
not exceeding five years 2,472 2,413
Within a period of more than five years 848 L F 3,051 3,851
7,028 7,769
Less: Amount due within one year B AR AaRIET
shown under current liabilities R—ERNEIRZHIE (735) (742)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FIRIERBBEE T 2 RIE 6,293 7,027
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group obtained REE_SE—F+"A=1+—HIEFE"
a bank loan amounting to HK$8,000,000 (equivalent to AEEER —F £ XE%48,000,000% 7T (16
approximately MOP8,252,000). No new loan was obtained E110498,252,000/297T) RIRITEM &L E
during the year ended 31 December 2022. The loan carried TECTE+BA=t+—HIEFELEE
interest at variable market rate of Prime Rate less 2.55% per BEMHER ZEREREENXREF
annum and was repayable in instalments over 10 years from the 2.55% MR EMBHEXFE > BEARBZE
date of drawdown in 2021. The proceed was used to finance Z—FHIREEHEEEH10ERN D RAEE o FT
the acquisition of owned property with carrying amount of BRIBEBARAWEST AYE BERREN
MOP17,045,000 (2021: MOP17,398,000) at 31 December 2022 RE_—_F+-_B=+—HWKREEAR
included in the property, plant and equipment (see Note 15), 17,045,000)2F3 7t (Z& = —% : 17,398,000
which was also pledged to the bank to secure the bank loan. BP9 NBEYE (RME15) #REES

HI7MER FIR1TLUERIBTTEM
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23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. g7
Number of Share
shares capital
RInEB f& s
MOP’000
TR T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE.01BITHZER
Authorised: ERE -
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and RR-_Z_—F—H—H~
31 December 2022 BT —HF+ZA=t+—HK
B2 _#+”"H=+—H 5,000,000,000 51,500
Issued and fully paid: BRITRERE :
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and R_-_Z_—F—HF—H~
31 December 2022 S —H#+"H=+—HFK
B HF+"H=1+—H 2,000,000,000 20,630
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 24. Rk@mFI5HEI

24,

Eligible employees of the Group are covered by a government-
mandated defined contribution plan managed by the Macau
Government, namely Social Security Fund Contribution,
pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement benefit would be
determined and paid to the Macau Government. Contributions
are generally made by both employees and employers by paying
a fixed amount on a monthly basis to the Social Security Fund
Contribution. The Group funds the entire contribution and has no
further commitments beyond its monthly contributions.

The Group participates in the MPF Schemes under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs for each employee
to the MPF Schemes, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 for the MPF Schemes, which contribution
is matched by employees.

FEBNGERESEESRRMBNEE
RYBAT s M EBR AR T 8 (BN S RIEE
MR B BB R EE R E
BRREN - R —REBREREEHFRF
t EEREERASREAMLEREREE MM
SNEERB - FAEERBEEAHNEHRE
& BREAHMIN LEAMAE-

AREBRBEFERFIMLABEES KRGS
AEREANEEZEARESTE afEE
EMNEERRBITEAZFNESIE
THAEBRSESPRIFRE AEBEHMAE
F 5t EEH S % B 818 R & A A5 % 1 4
T RBEEENE B MEBWMA LIRS
30,0008 7T Z MR HESREH -
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24.

25.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (continueq)

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the schemes
prior to their interests in the Group’s contributions becoming
fully vested and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group in future years.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into
the following related party transactions:

Transactions with a related party

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has made
sales of materials amounting to MOP36,000 (2021: nil) to Shun
Tat.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
made purchases of materials from Shun Tat amounting to
MOP115,000 (2022: ni).

Compensation of key management personnel

Compensation of key management personnel represents the
remuneration of the directors of the Company during both years,
which is disclosed in Note 11.

24,

25.

BB EE @

REREHFR - HEEEENAEEERN
R EUBBAELHBMAEERTAU
114 R T B A B A A RO B SR M £

=+
o

RERRZ
BERAMBRRAMUSFRENIZR
KRS ARET T FHIRIES RS |

FAERRXS
BE_ZT-__F+ZHA=+—HLEE>
A& B [ B Z 85 & 1 #136,0008F 75 (ZF
——EIR)e

BHE_ T —&F+"FA=+—HIEEE &
EEMEIEZEESMEA1150008F T (ZF
TTHFE ) o

FTEEEAESME

TEEEBASMEEARRAEENMESE
FEBIFEN > REEIHIEE11 o
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26.

27.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the lease liabilities and bank borrowing disclosed in
Notes 21 and 22 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends and issue of
new shares and debts.

26.

BAEEER

FEBEREE AR DIRFEAERR EES
BEgE ARERBICEH AR 2B
FEHR/KRRBEREALHR BEFIE > & &E
B FY BB SRBS MR N o

FEBNEFRBREREE (BFED 5
R E21 k22 R BRNEAE AR KRIRTTE
) BRHRRERFEEFEBYFERLS
ANEREAANEGED (BEEETRERE
) °

FABAEZRFB/EERABELRE ED
ZIERNN—B D ARBERZEBERA
AR ESEERRANRR - REAQTE
ENHBER ~EERBEBZIKRE RS
THRMEBFEHEZREEARRE-

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. &M TR
Categories of financial instruments ERTHESHE
2022 2021
b oot - -
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T
Financial assets TREE
Amortised cost HEEH Al AS 121,569 123,245
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost BEEH Al AS 31,830 34,093
Lease liabilities HEasd 967 1,130
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 27. M T A w@

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
time deposit, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables, lease liabilities and bank borrowing. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
(representing pledged bank deposits, time deposit and cash
and cash equivalents) denominated in currencies other than the
respective group entities’ functional currencies at the end of the
reporting period are MOP4,451,000 (2021: MOP6,157,000).

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency exposure. However,
management of the Group monitors the related foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant currency
exposure should the need arise.

As the exchange rate of HK$/MOP s relatively stable, the Group
does not expect any significant foreign currency exposure arising
from the fluctuation of the HK$/MOP exchange rates. As a
result, management of the Group considers that the sensitivity of
the Group’s exposure towards the change in foreign exchange
rates between HK$/MOP is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
variable-rate bank borrowing. The Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate time deposit
and lease liabilities. The Group currently does not enter into any
hedging instrument for cash flow interest rate risk.

Management of the Group considers that the overall interest rate
risk is not significant and no sensitivity analysis is presented.

TR EEEERBR

AEENTESRT ACGEEREZRT
& HMEWEIE  BRFIRTER T
HEF ReERIREEEY BRHEZER
REMEMHE HEa B RIIETER %
LT AN BRI AR IR E - Bk
LT EARRMNER R AREZER
SHHREN T AEEEEEEERE
RZERAR URRAFAENMAITEERE
i

h 15 & b

EIER b

PSR AEBUSERERNINES
NN ESSHENEKEE (5EIEHFIR
TEZ EHRERAURRERIESSEY)
Z ERE{EA4,451,00008F 5 (B - —4% ¢
6,157,000;8F9 7T) ©

2 5 8 35 5 0 4 7 51 LB 1 S 16 9 5
B o AT » A S IR B ) B AR R A
MERL SN EERE B REA A
B

MR BT RFTNERBHREE  ~&H
R ERATR R THERKEME
EEMEAIINERR - FIL  AEEEEE
soAs AEEE B TTERPITT L BEREH)
Y J e S R B o o

e

A% B EEE T B DI RIRIT R RIT4
BRI BRTERENNESAEAER
o AEETERENES ERERREE
£ B A TR R AR o A% 8 5 At
B RBARAR TEMEH TR

FEEEERRABEANNXARTAEXR
B w258 RE Do
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 27. M TR ®w@

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising frorm contracts with
customers

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated its
finance team to develop and maintain the Group’s credit risk
grading to categorised exposures according to their degree
of risk of default. The finance team uses publicly available
financial information, whenever available, and/or the Group’s
own historical repayment records to rate its major customers
and debtors. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings
of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded spreads amongst
counterparties.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2022 on trade receivables and contract assets from
the Group’s the largest customers and top five customers
amounting to MOP41,373,000 and MOP154,970,000 (2021:
MOP90,374,000 and MOP110,686,000), respectively, and
accounted for approximately 23% and 88% (2021: 56% and
69%) of the Group’s total trade receivables and contract assets.

TREREEERKRER @

S8 A g KR E T

EERRESFHERGNEEEREE
B BEENRR -REREHER ~&H
FFEHRSEERREEREAERRA S
REBTEEMEEMBEE  AREERT
REERGEMHBRRERMAIINSEDHE
BHNEMEEREE-

KB ZIRARE R SHELN S EE

PEARERBREERR AEEEZIKE
M B/NEBIE REFEEERBRSFHRLUR
BENRRRZEENERETOE ME/\E
FERAMASNMBHER WA) kA&
EEBEEBTEREBREEIEERKRE
BAETHR - TEEFEERARKER
PHFNEEREARREEAXRZNEE
R FEETOH-

R_E__F+_A=+—H AEEER
REFSEBRATRARAATENEWE
FEER R EHEEAA41,373,00008F9 7t &
154,970,000089 7t (ZEZ—F : D3lH
90,374,000 F9 75 K& 110,686,00038 F3 7) B9
EEEPRR ZEFEEAERRKES
RGN EEBENAN28%%88% (ZF
T —14F : 56%&%69%) °
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 27. M T A w@

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuead)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Trade receivables and contract
assets are assessed individually for impairment assessment
based on the Group’s internal credit rating, historical credit
loss experience, aging analysis, repayment history and/or past
due status of respective trade receivables and contract assets,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate. In this regard,
the directors of the Company considered that the credit risk for
trade receivables and contract assets is significantly reduced at
the end of the reporting period.

Deposits, other receivables, pledged bank deposits, time deposit
and bank balances

At 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of rental
deposits amounted to MOP323,000 (2021: MOP313,000),
and management of the Group makes periodic individual
assessments on the recoverability of deposits based on
landlords’ credit quality. Management of the Group believes
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balances of deposits. The directors of the Company considered
that ECL for rental deposits is insignificant at the end of the
reporting period.

Management of the Group makes individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. Management of the
Group believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in
these outstanding balances. The directors of the Company
considered that ECL for these outstanding balances is
insignificant at the end of the reporting period.

ERAMEEEEREE @

EE R R EEEE @
B E GRS R &R G A ELEH S AIEE
&
MEWESERRENEEMS ' ~EED
FER & AR S ER FOFANN/BIE S &
HELHTEREEEREMNEGRRE  ERE
GERREGHNEETREAEBENANIE
Bk BENEEFBEL R BRE DT
B R, WEEWRE SRR E R
mEEHNEELS BT EETER S I
MEBANBEERZR BELHEIRIE UK
HRIRE BN E B R R ARG R A TaA
(BREEKEEE WER) FfEHB T
HEHBAR -BREMES > ZAADESERAR
REAARNEREZRIARGNEENE
B R B AR/

¥z BmERZIE  EIRPFIRITES T
Bz R iR T A% e

A TE T E+_RA=+—H HE®S
IRE 48 {E %4323,00008 T (ZE - —%F :
313,000}2P97T) » MAEEEIEE EHRE
X IWNEEERH RSO WREN M ETE
e AEEEEEBRATEBREERER
SHEBIBREAGEER G ARBEEERS
HEZENEREEHENRKRSHRIL A
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FEENEERREBEELEECH  BEL
BRUKNAI B S ERSIFIERIEEER ¥
HLAH B8 WORR IR Y BT Uy [0 14 2 1718 Bl 5T o 2
SEEEERN RS ABEGRILEBRE
EXRGEAR -FTRABEFI/AIAEE
EERITEREEBENRSHRILAEKR
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuead)
Deposits, other receivables, pledged bank deposits, time deposit
and bank balances (Continued)

The Group placed deposits only with those sizeable and
reputable banks. Over 97% (2021: 97%) of the Group’s bank
deposits are deposited to state-owned corporations with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for time deposits, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances by reference to published
information relating to the probability of default and considered
the ECL to be insignificant and no loss allowance was
recognised.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

27. ®ft TR w

EREAMEBEEEREE @

EE R REN G @
Kz HENIIR  EIRFFIRITIZA N E
HITFrk R AR TAS B (4E)

FEEERSREFHINREAREER
YFRVIRTT - AEBBBEIT% (T —F ¢
97%) BYIRTT R F IS B BR 15 AR ST AR 1% 45
EERBERTRNEAEER AERER
2EAHEBNRENENEENHERF
PO IRFIRITERRIRTTAERRETI2EAE
HEEBEN G IBSBRMEEEEST
BEXR AR EEDERER-

A EB A E SRR SR (G B U T AR
I

Trade receivables/

Category Description contract assets Other financial assets
#3 fat RUERERRG0EE HttemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default or does not have any  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
past-due amounts - not credit-impaired
B R HFEAMEQRRRE JLEEAAARE LHRBEEHE 12EREHEERE
—LERERESRE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle in full  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
- not credit-impaired
NGRS BHEARERIBERER BBEQREMNE SHRBEESE 12EREHEERE
—IERERESRE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
recognition through information developed internally or external - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
resources
2 ARSI ERREFGERBREERREMERILIRE 2BRNESHSE FHRBEEEE
=il —IERERESRE — I EEREERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired - credit-impaired
B BRBETEEDHRESHE SHRBEESE 2HRREERE

—hREERHE

—HRESHE
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. £EfTH @
Financial risk management objectives and policies EREAEEBEERBE @
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R KREFTE @
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TRFIBEGTTHEAGESEBIAGNASE
financial assets and contract assets which are subject to ECL BEEsMEERGNEENGEERR !
assessment:
Gross carrying amount
External credit ~ Internal credit 12m ECL or as at 31 December
Notes rating rating lifetime ECL Rt-AZ+-RRKEE
MEPEE nEEE 12BARBEEEES 2022 2021
MizE R RE 2ERBEEHEE ZEZF T3T-fF

MOP'000 MOP'000
TEf TEMR

Financial assets at amortised cost

REERATIRNERERE
Trade receivables 16 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 40,794 35,794
W B ZEEN TER RER 2HRREERE
—UEHREEHE
Watch List Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 863 3415
JIAERLE SHRBEERR
—IREREEHE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 24,567 15,408
R LHRBEERR
~IRLREERE
Loss Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired 25 31
B 2HRREERE
- BEREEHE
66,249 54,648
Deposits and other receivables 16 N/A Low risk 12m ECL
BERAMBYEE TEA BER 12EARHEEHE 323 1,648

Annual Report ZF£E#R & 2022 165



166 SEM Holdings Limited JE3Z3EiE G RA T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tra MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F— —F+_H=+—HIFE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. M TR ®w
Financial risk management objectives and policies ERAMEEEERBE @
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R KREFTE @
Gross carrying amount
External credit  Internal credit 12m ECL or as at 31 December
Notes rating rating lifetime ECL R+ZRA=+-BRKERE
SEEE REEE 128 A B EESRES 2022 2021
iz B R 2HBHEERE “ECE TZ-fF

MOP'000  MOP'000
TR TEfn

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

REERAIIRNEREE (B
Pledged bank deposits 19 Al N/A 12m ECL 20,192 1,498
BRABTER TER 12ERBHEEER
Time deposit 19 Al N/A 12m ECL 21,7115 28,194
EBER TER 12ERBHEEER
Bank balances 19 Al N/A 12m ECL 20,368 40,243
RITEER TER 12ERBHEEER
62,275 69,930
Other item
HftEE
Contract assets 18 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 87,761 71,004
BHEE TEHR AR 2HREREERE
~IREREERE
Watch list Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 1,108 118
JIAERLE LHRBEERR
—EEREEHE
Doulbtful Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 45,349 46,127
R LEEBEERR
~IREREERHE
Loss Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired 1,468 1,468
R 2HREREERE
- BEREEHE

135,686 118,717
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27. £ TR w
RIEAMSGEEBERBE @

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

EERERREN G @
TRITREBED ZEDNVERE Z IR
MREHNEEEMEREEREZS-

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuead)
The following table shows movements in lifetime ECL that has
been recognised for trade receivables and contract assets under

the simplified approach.

BHEE TN
Contract assets Trade receivables
2 HATEH 2 HITEH 2 HATEH
FEBE 2BREBGEE FEB#E FEB#E
(EEHER B EHR (Mt 3R (3R
EERE) EEHM{E) EERE) EEH{E) B3
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit- (not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
TR TRMT FRMT TR TRMT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
At 1 January 2021 RIB-—%
—HB—H 3,754 - 1,315 - 5,069
Impairment losses reversed BRERESE (1,457) - (1,131) = (2,588)
Changes dug to financial RZZ2--5—F—H
instruments recognised BRzEERTAM
asat 1 January 2021 ELf788
- Transfer to credit-impaired -BAGERE (56) 56 (1) 1 -
- Impairment losses —EREDRESE
recognised 5,134 1,412 415 30 6,991
Impairment losses recognised for ~ HMELERMEEZ
new financial assets originated BHERAHESE 926 - 2,384 3,310
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ-F
+-A=1+—H 8,301 1,468 2,982 31 12,782
Impairment losses reversed BECAESE (611) - (1,289) 6) (1,906)
Changes due to financial Gy
instruments recognised BRzEEMTEM
as at 1 January 2022 ELf78%
- Impairment losses —-ERRRESE
recognised 8,991 - 4,458 - 13,449
Impairment losses recognised for ~ HELSREEL
new financial assets originated ERAREER 248 - 1,102 - 1,350
At 31 December 2022 R_EZ_F
+ZA=+-H 16,929 1,468 7,253 2% 25,675
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B E — &~ —F+_ B=1+—HIFE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 27. M TR ®w@

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

At 31 December 2022, the estimated loss rates for trade
receivables and contract assets ranged from 0.16% to 68%
(2021: from 0.16% to 18%). The increase in loss rates reflects a
higher risk of credit default arising from the greater uncertainty
triggered by the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, due to uncertainty on the COVID-19
pandemic, the increase in ECL is mainly caused by significant
increase in credit risk of six customers, of which the related
gross carrying amounts of these six customers’ trade receivables
and contract assets of MOP24,567,000 and MOP45,349,000
are considered as doubtful balances. ECL of an aggregate
amount of MOP23,842,000 out of the total ECL provision of
MOP25,675,000 has been provided for these balances. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, following the suspension
of a project in Macau, the increase in ECL was mainly caused
by significant increase in credit risk of two customers, of which
the related gross carrying amounts of these two customers’
trade receivables and contract assets of MOP11,335,000 and
MOP30,637,000 were considered as doubtful balances. ECL
of an aggregate amount of MOP7,555,000 out of the total
ECL provision of MOP12,782,000 had been provided for these
balances.

The loss rates are determined based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtor, and are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables, which include the forecast of GDP in
Macau. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress
and retention money and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. Management of the Group has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

ERAMEEEEREE @

EE R R BETEE @
RN_E__—_F+_FA=+—H EBKES
RARENEENGHTERIRENTF0.16%
E68% (ZEZ—F :0.16%=18%) 8%k
R TR COVID-19A 1T R R E £ 5| 3
NERIAEEMEREERBLORAKMK-
BE_E__H+_A=+—HLFE>
R COVID-19B BN AT % BlREE
ERENFERHRARTEZEERRE
RIEIEN HPZENAET R 2BRE SR
AR EHNEEZBREREE24,567,000
P9 7T K2 45,349,000 P T # 1R 2 T AR 45
R o TAHA{S SRS 1B 48 RE25,675,0008 9
TR TEHRE EE51848%823,842,00072 9
TTEMZEERTIREE - BEZZS - —F
+ZB=+—HIEFEE REEREMHIER
Z FEAHECEEEEENFERAHRMARE
FZEERBABEN EFRZEMLE
FZRERKEZERAKREHEEZ HBMER
M{E11,335,000/2 F97T 530,637,000 F9 75
WEARKRER AR EEGBEEELE
12,782,000:8F3 st H I TEHAE E 5 18 48 28
7,555,000/ F9 Tt E s i E A5 R IR B o

BREDENREBEFARBFHRNBERR
FIRENRETE  WHHETRABURMREA
AR ERRBEBWRIBERE NN RHEE
HENERRATEIEE R BEERPIARM
EERENTEN - aNEEIRARTIER
TRKkFEE BEARKESONEKRE
ZRMEARBAR AR R B &
EEEEERRS BWE SRR AMEL
RKEGHEERRXGERE-
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 27. M T A w@

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed

adequate by management of the Group to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates
for non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.

TREREEERKRER @

MENE £ EE

EEERDETERE  AEEBERKRER
FEREERRAR/RTENHRERREEFE
YK UEREEBNERREES I
BERERE RS E-

TREVNAEBREBEENFRBBE
TREENGRTSAORIAE - &ZRIHIREAR
EEVEAXNNRFEAHANEREERN
AEFEFEERBRR -FITESREERNE
HAEROENERBHR ZXREBENER
AEREMNE -

Weighted  On demand Total
average  or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
e BER RUERRE

FI9FIR DiE 1526 2F5E 5ELLE mEME REfE
% MOP’000 MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP'000 MOP’000 MOP’000
% FRFR TRz TRFR TRFR FRMT TR

At 31 December 2022 RZB-ZF+ZB=+—-H

Trade and other payables R B 5 IR R EL A FE (T 7B - 24,802 - - - 24,802 24,802
Lease liabilities HE&E 5.00 567 328 136 - 1,031 967
Bank borrowing BITER 3.33 957 968 2,905 3,208 8,058 7,028
26,326 1,296 3,041 3,208 33,891 32,797
At 31 December 2021 KRB —5+"B=+—H
Trade and other payables S B 3 IR R EL B (T 7B = 26,324 = = = 26,324 26,324
Lease liabilities HEaR 5.00 M 240 - - 1,181 1,130
Bank borrowing IBITMER 2.45 942 943 2,827 4,085 8,797 7,769
28,207 1,183 2,827 4,085 36,302 35,223

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values at the end of the reporting period.

THITANATEE

THEERTREENAFEDREER
MMIRRERED TN AR EBRUERE -

FAREFRR RiFEM B REDREH
RASEHRNEREEREENREELEZR
RREMARNATFEEE
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28. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 28. EX BB TN AEHEE

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Amount

due to

a director

of the Company

Lease (included in Bank

liabilities  other payables) borrowing Total

R EAT

—RLEEHE

(5t AE At
HEEE FEf7RIB) RITER st
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMT TR TR FRMT
At 1 January 2021 RZZ2Z—F—F—H 838 23 - 861
Financing cash flow MBEREME (1,320) 334 7,624 6,638
Interest expenses FIERE 106 - 145 251
New leases entered HIEEGER 1,506 - = 1,506
At 31 December 2021 K-B_—£+_H=+—H 1,130 357 7,769 9,256
Financing cash flow MERERE (1,105) (69) (946) (2,120)
Interest expenses FIERE 53 - 205 258
New leases entered HIERETiES 889 - - 889
At 31 December 2022 RIBE_"&#+"A=+—H 967 288 7,028 8,283

29. PERFORMANCE BONDS 29. BAIREK

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has outstanding
performance bonds in respect of construction contracts through
a bank amounting to MOP20,192,000 (2021: MOP1,493,000).
The bonds are secured by pledged bank deposits as disclosed

in Note 19.

RZBE-_ &+ -_A=+—H ' xE£@E
BIRTHERSNEEREEBANRR
20,192,00008F9 75 (= - —4 : 1,493,000
JEPITT) o ZE R H M EE19FT I EMN B
HIRITEREE R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &,

=

30. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Right-of-use assets for buildings with a total capital value of
MOP889,000 (2021: MOP1,506,000) and the same amount
of lease liabilities were recognised during the year ended 31
December 2022. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets

31.

that are held by the lessor.

Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

FH_A=1T—HILFE

30. FIRER 5
REBEE_E - "+ " B=+—HILEE>
FEsR4E B 2 {E 4889,0008 P9 75 (T T — —
£ 1 1,506,0002F970) NigFHREEEERK
HRSENEEaE -BRHBARFHEL

ERIRIR RIS HE R R A2

4t

DEO

HEBEEFSAFEENRR®R-

<,
PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. B ARBEFE
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December N R B —F+-_A=+—
2022 and 2021 are as follows: HEARABHBABNEBOT
Issued and
Place of Place of fully paid Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation operation share capital of the Company Principal activities
BE1T YA
MEBATAME SR EEME RS RRA FEft B 1E TEEHR
2022 2021
k-t -3 —E-&
Directly held:
EiERE:
SEM Investments Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
SEM Investments Limited HBRLHEE & IESH 100% 100% REER
Indirectly held:
MRS
SEM Development Limited BVI Hong Kong USs$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
SEM Development Limited RBRUHE & 1%E7T 100% 100% REZR
SEM Resources Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of administrative
support for the Group and
provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering
services
SEM Resources Limited 548 ) 18T 100% 100%  AREBERETHZFIRE
HE S R TR
Ready System Engineering Limited ~ Macau Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering
services
2EARIRERAT i it 25,0002 7 100% 100% REENREHIERS

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period.

REREHRM B LB I EEITERMER

EeEaly
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32. BEPGtESTE

On 22 January 2020, the Company conditionally adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) as incentive
or reward for contributions that the eligible participants have
made or may make to the Group. Pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme, the Company may grant options to any employee,
advisor, consultant, service provider, agent, client, partner or
joint-venture partner of the Company or its subsidiary (including
any director or any director of the Group’s subsidiaries) who is
in full-time or part-time employment with or otherwise engaged
by the Company or any subsidiary at the time when an option
is granted to such person under the Share Option Scheme
or any person who, in the absolute discretion of the board,
has contributed or may contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for the shares thereby linking their
interest with that of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the board
may, in their absolute discretion make offer to the Eligible
Participants. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption, after which period
no further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in force to the extent necessary to
give effect to the exercise of any options granted or exercised
prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance with
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

TR F-A B aRBEGKHS
BYERAmEE AR St B (TREARRESTE))) » LUSIRD
WERECERSRENAERFHHNA
FEFHBER - IRIBFERESE > XA A
AEABSHEMNBRBRNERES EHA
BB RBEHED KB - TR -EBA
HEECESBA BEENESHFER
MEBABDNERNES REERE MEH
ATRERBRESEBETERERAS
ERARBEEXNEERQFDHEFMEL
BIUHMBD AEE  ARAEFE2ERBR
B AEEFEHI P ERHERMBNEAMAL
(TEERS2HEE) REBREMEDER
7 BAERFRE —HAme

TRV BRESENER EFEI 2R
BERAEERSEERMEERE - BRE
STEIRS B B4 B I AE R 0F 3 ) » =% B R
BESABE D EFERE  ERITESTA
ERENETENEMERENERES
B BSEREENAELNENLENE
BEY o
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continueq)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme
(together with options which may be granted under any other
share option schemes) shall not exceed such number of shares
as equals to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at
the date of Listing.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each grantee (including both
exercised or outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined by the board, but in any event will
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the particular option,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as shown in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of the particular option; and (i) the
nominal value of a share on the offer date of the particular
option.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were
no share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme
nor were any share options granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

32. B ETE @

RIFBRES B PEM R R BE R HAVEE
et CERRBEREMBRES S TTER
ERERE S ROERNMEABERTRF
BEEERN LETABRKEARTEHITRA
10%RI AR 17 8L H o

RAEM12E B B R SERATHERE
RERETRETETHRMDER (BEE
TN ERITENBRE A EEBREET
AP BI1% ©

BRESFETRONIEESHESRS
BE ERUOAIEENRUTRSE ()
RHAHFBREEZEH WABEXH BX
Fis BREXRFIIRMDWHE (VR IZEE
BRERHAPALEEXHBRAEH
WBRFTHIRMD FHWRHE ; Ki)iE H A7
BREZERZROEE:.

BE_T__FRBE”_—F+ZAH
=+—HLEFE BRESSBTHERT
fERERE  HIE T EEAEREER S
FERRRE T FHH KD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

T A+ H=+—HItFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33. A‘A S Bk R R R EE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—E——fF "z
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000
Kzt TR TIP3 T

Non-current assets JERENE E
Property, plant and equipment ME BB 3 4
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHBABNRE 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries USRI B A B 7 1A 29,543 26,322
29,547 26,327

Current assets REBEE
Other receivables HAuhpEsiIE 422 898
Time deposit T HAFER 20,630 20,659
Bank balances IRITASER 2,393 8,310
23,445 29,867
Current liabilities Bt =N

Other payables H e w18 70 980
Net current assets RENBEEREE 23,375 28,887
Total assets less current liabilities #2&ERREI&E 52,922 55,214

Capital and reserves B K #E
Share capital (&N 23 20,630 20,630
Reserves i @) 32,292 34,584
52,922 55,214
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T A+ H=+—HItEFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33. AAS IR AR EEE @
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note (g):  Movements in reserves of the Company

Mste): FAFEED

Share  Accumulated

premium losses Total

ialipe ] REth5ig et

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

TR TR TR T

At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—HF—H 84,509 (44,603) 39,906
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREERZALEE

expenses for the year - (5,322) (5,322)

At 31 December 2021 RE_—&F+"H=+—H 84,509 (49,925) 34,584
Loss and total comprehensive FHRBEREAERRSZEEE

expenses for the year - (2,292) (2,292)

At 31 December 2022 ATE—FE+"B=+—H 84,509 (52,217) 32,292
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AT 2

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilites and FEEBEXAETBHEENETISEEURE
equity of the Group for the last five financial years set out below. EE -BEAERNBMESH N TR

RESULTS e

Year ended 31 December
HE+t-A=1+—HILEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ZEZC T ZEIRF E-AfF ZE)N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMT TR TR FRMT TR

Revenue gt 290,195 182,176 70,239 203,087 185,229
(Loss) profit before taxation BriAD (5518) ‘&7 (5,752) (4,957 (19,409) 27,287 48,413
Taxation RIE (1,193) (14) (806) (7,020) (6,927)
(Loss) profit for the year FR (518) BH (6,945) (4,971) (20,215) 20,267 41,486
Attrioutable to: BUF AL HELG
Owners of the Company VUNCIEZZ=DN (6,945) 4,971) (20,215) 20,267 41,486
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
As at 31 December
B+ZB=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
s TET-F CZEBIEF CZEB-AfF ZE-N\F

MOP’000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000
TR THMT TR THEMT TR

Total assets BEME 276,912 273,411 272,110 207,333 174,099
Total liabilities BEBE (52,961) (42,515) (36,243) (55,926) (42,959)
Total equity ML 223,951 230,896 235,867 151,407 131,140
Attributable to: DU A LFELS

Owners of the Company UNGIEZZ=DN 223,951 230,896 235,867 151,407 131,140

The summary of the combined results of the Group for the year FTEB&BE=E—_T—-N\F+A=+—HILF
ended 31 December 2018: and the combined assets and liabiites ENEHEBERAEBRR _Z—N\F+A4
of the Group as at 31 December 2018 have been extracted fromthe =T —HBHEHEEREGEHERREERE
Prospectus. Such Summary is presented on the basis as set out in 12 > Z I ERIBREREFAHEEZ T -

the Prospectus.
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